
Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Allison Layton 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

M&CC Regular Meeting 

City Hall 

 

DATE:    December 20, 2022 

 

 

OPEN SESSION – 6:15 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call 

Statement of Closed Meeting 

1. Summary Statement of the closed meeting held December 20, 2022 

Presentations 

1. Recognition of Employee Retirements 

2. Presentation of a Certificate of Recognition to the Fort Hill High School Football Team by the 

Mayor and City Council for capturing the Class 1A Maryland State Football Title 

Director's Reports 

(A) Administrative Services 

1. Administrative Services Monthly Reports for October and November, 2022 

(B) Public Works 

1. Maintenance Division monthly reports for October and November, 2022 

(C) Police 

1. November 2022 Monthly Police Report 

(D) Utilities - Flood, Water, Sewer 

1. Utilities Division (Water/Sewer/Flood) November Monthly Report 

 



Approval of Minutes 

1. Approval of the Closed, Work, and Regular Session Minutes of September 6, 2022, and the 

Closed Session Minutes of September 13, 2022 

Public Comments – For Agenda items only 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance 3936 (2nd and 3rd readings) - an ordinance to repeal and re-enact with 

amendments sections 19-2 to 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Code of the City entitled "Public 

Ethics" for the purpose of complying with state law 

2. Ordinance 3937 (2nd and 3rd readings) – an ordinance to approve the petition to amend 

the official zoning map to rezone property located at the intersection of Seton Drive and 

Pinecrest Drive from R-S (Suburban Residential) to B-L (Local Business) 

New Business 

(A) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

1. Order 27,144 - amending the City of Cumberland Municipal Debt Policy, originally 

adopted by Order 25,001 and dated September 29, 2009, to establish comprehensive 

guidelines for the issuance and management of the City's debt 

2. Order 27,145 - accepting the retirement of John C. Ternent, Chief of Police effective 

January 1, 2023 

3. Order 27,146 -appointing Captain James D. Burt as acting Police Chief, effective January 

1, 2023 

4. Order 27,147 - authorizing $25,000 in initial start up funds for the Carver Center for the 

purposes of utilities and insurance 

5. Order 27,148 - authorizing the sole source proposal from Carl Belt, Inc. for the 

emergency repair work on the 18" Sewer line in Mechanic Street in the not to exceed 

amount of $157,718.10 

6. Order 27,149 - authorizing the purchase of a new Ford F-600 dump truck with plow and 

spreader for the Water Department from Keystone Ford for a price not to exceed 

$116,485 

7. Order 27,150 - authorizing the purchase of a new Ford F-550 service body truck for the 

Water Department from Keystone Ford for an amount not to exceed $110,435 

8. Order 27,151 - authorizing the purchase of a new Ford F-250 regular cab pickup truck 

with plow for the Flood Control Department from Keystone Ford for an amount not to 

exceed $55,160 



9. Order 27,152 - authorizing the purchase of a new F-350 service body truck for the Street 

Department from Keystone Ford and J & J Equipment for an amount not to exceed 

$64,491 

10. Order 27,153, authorizing the transfer of 309 S. Cedar Street from Richard A. Pravlik to 

Kevin Knisely 

11. Order 27,154 - authorizing the forgiveness of loans within the Deferred Loan Program 

due to deficiencies with the program documents 

12. Order 27,155 – amending the ARPA funding allocation approved by Order 26,961, 

approving an increase of $100,000 to Affordable Housing Assistance and a decrease of 

$100,000 to Community Development Property Improvement 

13. Order 27,156 - declaring certain City-owned properties to be surplus and authorizing 

them for public sale 

Letters / Petitions 

1. Letter from the City Clerk advising that the MD State Board of Canvassers certified the 2022 

General Election results on December 12 2020, and that the Mayor, Raymond M. Morriss, was 

re-elected and Rock Cioni and James Leo Furstenberg, III., having received the two highest 

number of votes for the office of Council, are hereby declared nominated and will be sworn into 

office on January 3, 2023 

Public Comments 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

Adjournment  



File Attachments for Item:

. Administrative Services Monthly Reports for October and November, 2022



Administrative Services Monthly Report for October 2022 
 

 

 

 

December 20, 2022 

 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

City Hall 

Cumberland, Maryland 21502 

 

 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

 

The following report is submitted by the Department of Administrative Services for the month of October 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Information Technology Department 
October 2022 

 

 

 

Statistics 

 

 130 new help desk requests 

 106 help desk requests resolved 

 

Activities 

 

Major department initiatives in the past month include: 

 

● Continue making changes to update our network environment and improve security 

● Continue working on police mobile data terminal updates 

● Assist with FOI request 

● Assist with Fuelmaster upgrade 

● Assist with personnel changes and moves 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Parks and Recreation 
October 2022 

Diane Johnson, Director 

 

 

Baseball/ Softball League  

 

Soccer/Football League      play and practices for October: 

The City of Cumberland provides fields for the following leagues: 

 Girls Softball, Fall Instructional League 

 Dapper Dan Fall League 

 JCP Soccer League 

 AVID Soccer Club 

 Renegades Pee Wee Football   

Note – October concluded regular field usage for the fall season with the exception of only special event 

practices. 

 

Pavilion Reservations and usage for the month of October - 13 reservations 

Pavilion reservations closed October 31, for the season to resume in the spring. 

 

Seasonal Employees – October concluded the staffing of seasonal employees of the park watchmen at 

Constitution Park. Mason Sports has additional weeks in November for playoff and Travel Football team 

practices.  Restrooms will be open on a daily basis only until Winterization of these facilities begins in Mid to 

Late November. 

 

Afterschool Program Christmas Event – Planning for students with the Afterschool Program from four local 

Elementary Schools to visit City Hall and Downtown Cumberland Christmas Tree in December.  Mr. Brad 

Ditto, Director of the Afterschool Program will organize the groups transportation to City Hall to view the 

decorations, visit with Santa, treats and more.   Planned for December 12,13,14, &15.   

 

Program Open Space Application – Preparation of the Application for POS project recently approved by 

Allegany County.  The project includes Constitution Park improvements including upgrade and replacement 

of Picnic Tables, Grills and Trash containers.   

 

Meetings attended:  

Monthly Recreation Advisory Board Meeting – October 3 

Parks & Recreation Maintenance Meeting 

Sign company for replacement of Park signs  

 

Upcoming: 

      Recreation Advisory Board Meeting – Monday November 7 

      Afterschool Program – Students visit City Hall Christmas Party 

New Year’s Eve Fireworks 

Proposals for July 4, 2023 Fireworks  

2024 budget preparation  

Begin Planning for 2023 Season 

 

 



 

Community Development Report 

October 2022 

Kevin Thacker, Code Compliance Manager 

 

CODE COMPLIANCE 

 
 

Noted Activity: 

 Love’s Travel Center - $550,000 RV site project. Plans include 23 RV & Van spaces, retail store, pavilion, 

community campsite, etc..  

 UPMC -   $163,000 CT scan room remodel. 

 1040 Bedford St. - $215,000 remodel to repair fire damaged home 

 Demolition of two blighted properties: 804 Maryland and 124 Columbia St. 

 

Code Enforcement Activity: 

68 new cases received – 32 of those are still open 

27 violations were found 

66 cases have been resolved 

  
 

Permits/Reviews & Rental Licenses: 

45 Total Permits/Reviews were issued290 Rental Inspections were completed 

 

Building Miscellaneous Occupancy Signage 

Residential .......... 2 Residential .......... 5 Residential .......... 0 Commercial ........ 1 

Commercial ........ 2 Commercial ........ 4 Commercial ........ 4 Commercial ........ 0 

 

Electrical Plumbing Utility Demolition 

Residential ........ 10 Residential .......... 3 Residential .......... 0 Residential .......... 2 

Commercial ........ 4 Commercial ........ 4 Commercial ........ 1 Commercial ........ 0 



 

Public ROW Rental Licences Rental Inspections  

Res./Comm. ........ 6 Issued ................. 55 Pass .................... 29 

Commercial ........ 0 Commercial ........ 0 Fail........................ 4 

 

Plans, Reviews, Amendments and Appeals Certificates of Appropriateness 

(ZA, RPR, SR, ZMA, ZTA, SRA) Issued ................... 1 

Subdivision Review ..................................... 1 Request for Change/Amendment 

 Issued ................... 1 

 

Revenue from ‘Issued’ Permits/Reviews: 

Building Permits ........................................................ $5,448.00 

Miscellaneous Permits ..................................................... 75.00 

Occupancy Permits ........................................................ 120.00 

Sign Permits ...................................................................... 62.00 

Utility Permits..................................................................... 0.00 

Plan reviews, Amendments & appeals ......................  250.00 

Zoning Classification Determination (info request)...... 0.00 

Municipal Infractions (citations) ...................................... 0.00 

Certificates of Appropriateness ..................................... 30.00 

Rental Licenses (new & renewals) ................................... 0.00 

Paid Rental Inspection Requests ............................... 4,375.00 

TOTAL  .................................................................... $10,360.00 

 

Demolition Bonds Collected ........................................... $0.00 (both in Oct. were City owned) 

 

 
 

 

Community Development Programs 

October 2022 

Lee Borror, Senior Community Development Specialist 

 

 

Community Development Block Grant 
(CDBG) Monthly Activity 

October 
2022 

Report 
Original 
Budget 

Lifetime 
Funds Exp 

Remaining 
Balance 

Baltimore Street Redesign 2020 $402,700.00 $0.00 $402,700.00 

Constitution Park Inclusive Playground Ph. 2 2020 $65,000.00 $64,210.39 $789.61 

Fire Dept Stair Chair   1780 2020 $2,626.37 $2,625.45 $0.92 

Const Pk Incl. Playground Ph. 2 guard station   $3,373.63 $0.00 $35,683.59 

AYEPS Youth Center Facility Rehab 2020 $4,752.83 $0.00 $4,752.83 

2020 Grant Totals  $773,785.60 $327,196.61 $443,926.95 

Balt Street Redesign/Queen City/South St. 2021 $232,721.00 $0.00 $232,721.00 

Queen City project break away 2021 $70,721.00     

South Street project break away 2021 $162,000.00     

HRDC Rental Rehabilitation 2021 $19,300.00 $0.00 $19,300.00 

Admin 2021 $126,426.00 $80,348.05 $46,077.95 



Ind. Cost 2021 $15,120.00 $9,477.00 $5,643.00 

Fair Housing 2021 $8,454.00 $7,013.96 $1,440.04 

YMCA Gilchrist Repl. Ph. 2 2021 $48,520.00 $48,519.00 $1.00 

Targeted Foot & Bike Patrol 2021 $3,961.00 $3,869.67 $91.33 

Jane's Place Inc  2021 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 

Const Park/Splashpad 2021 $87,750.00 $0.00 $87,750.00 

2021 PI credits      $6,550.50 

2021 Grant Totals   $809,120.00 $51,206.38 $399,574.82 

2022 PI credits 2022 hud yr     $9.22 

2022 Grant Totals 2022 $803,672.00 $0.00 $803,672.00 

          

          

Totall PI credited to 2022   $9.22  Remaining 

Total        $856,604.52 

      Total All Yrs $856,604.52 

October 2022 Report             11/3/22         

Balances: Year    

$443,926.95 2020    

$399,584.04 2021    

$803,672.00 2022    

$843,510.99 OLD 20 21    

$1,647,182.99 Total All    

 

 

CARES ACT CDBG  Monthly Report 

Amount 

Funded Expended Funds Remain IDIS # Not funded 

CV HRDC Emergency 

Assistance  (COMPLETED) $24,992.05 $24,992.05 $0.00 1757  

CV Associated Charities Emergency 

Homeless Prevention $21,768.22 $7,614.48 $14,153.74 1763  

CV Hazard Pay Relief 

Program  (COMPLETED) $55,000.00 $55,000.00 $0.00 1762  

CV Broadband & Technology 

Accessibility  EXPANDED $172,456.00 $76,963.65 $95,492.35 1758 increase 

CV YMCA Gymnasium Roof 

(Gilchrist)               NEW $40,600.00 $0.00 $40,600.00 1787 $ 40,600.00 

CV Family Crisis Resource Center COVID 

hotline/Hepa  new $84,544.00 $0.00 $84,544.00 1788  

CV3 AYEP Youth Center 

Rehabilitation   SEE FUNDS ADDED $190,050.73 $56,020.55 $134,030.18 1764 increase 

CV3 YMCA Transitional Housing 

Sanitizer      (COMPLETED) $6,750.00 $6,750.00 $0.00 1765  

TOTAL  CDBG CV $596,161.00 $227,340.73 $368,820.27   $ 40,600.00 

             

  B20MW24001   Award (1st rnd.) $476,251.00        

  B20MW24001  Award (3rd rnd.) $119,910.00         

Updated 11/3/2022      

 



Historic Planning/Preservation 

October 2022 

 

Ruth Davis-Rogers, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 

 

In addition to serving the public and answering daily questions and inquires I did the following: 

 

Personal Training 

Continue to train and learn the following systems: 

 

 Logos 

 Citizenserve 

 Municode 

 Intelligrants (State of MD) 

 Civicplus 

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting (HPC) 

 

 Prepared and administered the Historic Preservation Meeting on Sept. 14th 

 Reviewed and administered Certificate of Appropriateness permits 

Meetings & Events 

 

 Attended meeting for Allegany Center of Lifelong Learning 

 Attended meeting with Clocktowner Ventures 

 Attended Downtown Development Commission Meeting 

 Attended MSAC Meeting at Arts Council 

 Attended Leadership Allegany 

 Attended ARPA Meeting 

 Helped with Carver Clean Up  

 Attended Cumberland Education and History Meeting 

 Attended Zoom Mtg. w/MHT 

Grants, Tax Credits and Section 106 reviews 

 

Administered/managed funding/grants for: 

 

 Residential Accessibility Improvement $50,000. 

 Roof Replacement Program $50,000. 

 Conducted Section 106 Reviews (as needed) for CDBG funding. 

 Answered questions (as needed) regarding tax incentives from both current and potential building 

owners.  

 

 

 
 



 

Comptroller’s Office 

Financial Activity Report October 2022 

Mark Gandolfi, City Comptroller 

 

Cash Flow: 

 

Attached for your review is a Cash Flow Summary for the month of October 2022.   

 

On October 1, 2022, the City had a cash balance of $18.2 million ($14.1 million invested in a value money 

market program and $4.1 million participating in a sweep program at First United Bank).  Disbursements 

exceeded receipts by $2.1 million resulting in a cash balance of $16.2 million at October 31, 2022 ($15.2 

million invested in a value money market program and $1.0 million participating in a sweep program at 

First United Bank).    

 

As of October 31, 2022, the significant tax receivable balances were as reflected in the table below.   

     

     

Taxes receivable (General Fund) 4,511,039$     

Beg Balance New Billings

Adjustments/ 

Abatements Collections Bad Debt Ending Balance

FY 2023 3,256,166$   733,225$        (14,115)$      633,485$      -$                3,341,791$     

FY 2022 750,486 150                 (1,504)          91,912          -$                657,220

FY 2021 264,262        42                   -               5,153            -                  259,151          

FY 2020 93,996          -                 746              415               -                  94,327            

FY 2019 41,340          -                 -               3,351            -                  37,989            

FY 2018 36,888          -                 -               217               -                  36,671            

FY 2017 16,604          -                 -               182               -                  16,422            

FY 2016 17,171          -                 -               183               -                  16,988            

FY 2015 17,642          -                 -               183               -                  17,459            

FY 2014 12,929          -                 -               183               -                  12,746            

FY 2013 9,152            -                 -               -                   -                  9,152              

FY 2012 5,385            -                 -               -                   -                  5,385              

FY 2011 2,963            -                 -               -                   -                  2,963              

Prior FY's 2,775            -                 -               -                   -                  2,775              

4,527,759$   733,417$        (14,873)$      735,264$      -$                4,511,039$      
 

$1,208,771 

22,154

868,529

1,242,337

0

$3,341,791 

Real Property (Half Year)

The current year tax receivable balance is comprised of the following:

Real property (non-owner occupied)

Non-Corp Personal Property

Corporate Personal Property

Real Property (semiannual payments)

 
 

 

 

 

The City’s liquidity position continues to be strong as illustrated in the following cash and investments 

table. Restricted cash and investments are comprised primarily of invested American Rescue Plan Act 

(ARPA) funds received in advance and bond proceeds restricted to associated capital projects and 

expenditures.   



 

Cash Investments

Beginning Balance 18,212,982$      30,164,012$    

Add:

Cash Receipts 5,754,182          59,980              

Investment Transfer -                      -                     

Less:

Disbursements 7,779,802          -                     

Investment Transfer -                      -                     

Ending Balance 16,187,362$      30,223,992$    

Restricted 6,943,405$        9,845,293$       

Cash and Investment Summary

October 31, 2022

 

 

The table below illustrates cash restrictions and restricted investments associated with specific 

expenditures and/or capital projects.   

 
Restricted Cash

10/1/2022  Increase Utilization 10/31/2022

Police Seizures 112,409$           -$               -$                112,409$           

Est of Dorothy Jackson 89                       -                 -                  89                        

Bowers Trust 70,636               -                 -                  70,636                

Street Improvement -                      -                 -                  -                      

GOB 21 1,948,095          4,019             -                  1,952,114          

ARPA 4,741,898          9,783             -                  4,751,681          

Demolition & Fiscal Agent Bonds 56,476               -                 -                  56,476                

6,929,603$       13,802$         -$                6,943,405$        

Restricted Investments

10/1/2022  Increase Utilization 10/31/2022

DDC 4,930$               10$                 -$                4,940$                

GOB 21 3,504                 7                     -                  3,511$                

ARPA 9,817,118          19,724           -                  9,836,842$        

9,825,552$       19,741$         -$                9,845,293$         

 

Increases to GOB21, ARPA and DDC are interest earnings on funds awaiting planned use.   

 

The DDC restricted investment was funded through donations and is restricted for the purpose of 

maintenance of the Wes Han Fountain in the Downtown Mall. 

 

GOB 21 is the FY21 general obligation bond issuance restricted for scheduled capital projects and 

equipment. 

 

Estate of Dorothy Jackson is donations for fire, police and police K-9. 

 

Capital Projects and Associated Debt: 

 

The tables below illustrate undrawn Maryland CDA bond proceeds and unused general obligation bond 

proceeds (GOB21) as well as the accumulated debt and grant proceeds associated with the Decatur Street 

waterline and the Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) projects. 

 



Available Bond Proceeds

10/1/2022 Increase Utilization 10/31/2022

CDA 2019 883,547$             -$                -$                   883,547$              

CDA 2021 5,779,326            -                  -                     5,779,326             

G0B 21 1,948,095            4,019              -                     1,952,114             

8,610,967$          4,019$            -$                   8,614,986$           

Decatur Street Project

10/1/2022 Increase Utilization 10/31/2022

MWQFA Series 2022A 1,181,105.00$    -$                -$                   1,181,105$           

MWQFA Series 2022B 425,140               -                  -                     425,140                 

Decatur Street Grants 352,277               -                  -                     352,277                 

1,958,522$          -$                -$                   1,958,522$           

CSO Projects

10/1/2022 Increase Utilization 10/31/2022

Evitts Creek Debt 156,740$             -$                -$                   156,740$              

Evitts Creek Grant 5,418,560            -                  -                     5,418,560             

78" Pipeline Debt 6,075,000            -                  -                     6,075,000             

78" Pipeline  Grant 46,338,080          -                  -                     46,338,080           

57,988,380$        -$                -$                   57,988,380$          
 

The GOB 21 $4K balance increase is interest earned. 

 

The Decatur Street waterline project is funded with $1.0 in grants and $2.1 million in loans with $0.5 

million of the loan amount being forgivable after 10 years. Construction is in process and expected to be 

complete November 1, 2022. 

 

The following three projects are major upgrades to the combined sewer collection system.  Evitts Creek 

Phase 3 is in the engineering phase with the majority of the necessary funding in place. Phase 3 project 

cost is estimated at $7.5 million and is partially funded with $5.4 million in grants and $0.2 million in loan. 

Phase 3 is on hold pending site access being granted by CSX. Evitts Creek Phase 4 is in the planning phase 

and funding is being sought from Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) to begin the 

engineering phase in FY 23. Phase 4 project cost is estimated at $4 million. The 78” pipeline project is 

budgeted to begin construction during FY24 pending Army Corp of Engineers approval and private 

property easement or acquisition. The total estimated project cost is $67 million and is partially funded 

with $46.3 million in grants and $6.1 million in loan with $1.5 million of the loan amount being forgivable. 

 

 

COVID-19: 

 

Available Funding (as of October 31, 2022) 

 

The City received $19,595,850 from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  The U.S. Treasury issued guidance 

providing greater details on the eligible uses and priority of these funds.  These are: 

 Support public health expenditures  

 Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency 

 Replace lost public sector revenue 

 Provide premium pay for essential workers 

 Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure 

 

Funds available for use: 

 



 Budgeted  Utilized  Remaining 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)  $19,595,850 

     Respond to the health emergency

          Community Programs

DDC Assistance to Small Businesses  $     183,500  $     28,435  $     155,065 

Promoting the Community  $       33,563  $     30,312  $         3,251 

Amphitheatre and Pavilion 1&2  $     174,350  $       3,971  $     170,379 

Pool Area and Splash Pad  $       71,250  $             -    $       71,250 

Janes Place for Abused Children  $     102,623  $       7,947  $       94,676 

Union Rescue Mission  $     750,000  $             -    $     750,000 

Community Development Property Improvement  $     364,960  $             -    $     364,960 

Affordable Housing Assistance  $     250,000  $             -    $     250,000 

YMCA Bus Replacement  $     216,000  $             -    $     216,000 

          PPE

               General  $       50,089  $     28,779  $       21,310 

               Facilities and Equipment  $       15,911  $     15,911  $               -   

Prisoner Processing Improvements  $     176,200  $             -    $     176,200 
HVAC improvement at City Hall & Public Safety 

Buildings  $  1,300,000  $             -    $  1,300,000 

     Premium Pay  $     833,952  $   833,952  $               -   

     Revenue Loss  $10,000,000  $4,149,913  $  5,850,087 

     Infrastructure Investments

          Water  $  5,073,452  $             -    $  5,073,452 

Unallocated Interest Earned  $               -    $             -    $       91,895 

     Total:  $19,595,850  $19,595,850  $5,099,222  $14,588,523 

Purpose  Awarded  

 Allocation 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

       Jeffrey Silka 

       City Administrator 

 

       sln 

 



Administrative Services Monthly Report for November 2022 
 

 

 

 

December 20, 2022 

 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

City Hall 

Cumberland, Maryland 21502 

 

 

Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 

 

The following report is submitted by the Department of Administrative Services for the month of November 

2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Information Technology Department 

November 2022 

Johnna Byers, Director 

 

 

 

Statistics 

 

 125 new help desk requests 

 91 help desk requests resolved 

 

Activities 

 

Major department initiatives in the past month include: 

 

● Continue making changes to update our network environment and improve security 

● Continue working on police mobile data terminal updates 

● Assist with Laserfiche server migration and upgrade 

● Begin WebEx cloud phone migration/upgrade project 

● Continue investigating replacement property tax software 

● Begin project to replace aged cameras in City Hall and Public Safety 

 

 

 



 

Parks and Recreation 

November 2022 

Diane Johnson, Director 

 

 

Annual Tree Lighting Ceremony for the City of Cumberland – Downtown Cumberland Mall – Program 

coordinated by the Mall Manager, Downtown Businesses, and the City was held Friday November 24, 2022. 

Parks & Recreation was not involved in the event. No Visits with Santa with Candy bags for children were 

held following the tree lighting. Saturday visits with Santa and Mrs. Claus are scheduled for the Book Center 

from 1 to 3 p.m. Bags of Candy will be provided by Parks & Rec. for Santa to give to the children. 

 

Field Usage: 

 

Football Practice – Youth League team practice at Flynn and Northcraft Fields, with lights, for travel teams 

with the Alliance Organization  

Western Maryland Elite Travel Football teams’ practice at Bower Field  

Soccer League games and practice concluded  

Seasonal employee at Mason Complex, Chuck Lowery concluded work for the season. 

Regular Season Field use concluded for the year.  

 

Meetings attended: 

 

November Recreation Advisory Board meeting 

Finan Center Volunteer organization – (The organization packed 250 Candy Bags for the Afterschool 

program’s visit to City and Santa and Mrs. Claus visits at the Book Center. 

 

After School Program Holiday Visit to City Hall:  

 

Working with Mr. Bradley Ditto, Director of the Allegany County After School program to plan a visit for 200 

Students to City Hall and Downtown Cumberland.  The event is planned for a four-day period with a different 

school each evening. The Elementary age students will visit City Hall to view the decorations, visit with Santa, 

and walk to the see the City’s Christmas Tree on the Downtown Mall.  

 

Upcoming: 

 

 After School Program from Allegany County Public Schools Visits to City Hall and Downtown 

Cumberland – December 12, 13, 14, & 15 

 December Recreation Board meeting 12/5/22   

 Fireworks for New Year’s Eve 

 Planning for 2022 Spring/Summer season and seasonal employees 

 Fireworks quotes for the July 4th 2022 

 

 

 

 

 



Community Development Report 
November 2022 

Kevin Thacker, Code Compliance Manager 

 

CODE COMPLIANCE 

 
 

Noted Activity: 

 New hire - Denise Adams, Citizen Service Representative position. 

 Demolition permit issued for one SFD residential property: 1211 Lexington Ave. 

 New home permit issued for 0 Longwood Ave. 

 

Code Enforcement Activity: 

26 new cases received – 14 of those are still open 

11 violations were found 

19 cases have been resolved 

  
 

Permits/Reviews & Rental Licenses: 

30 Total Permits/Reviews were issued. 

49 Rental Inspections were completed 

 

Building Miscellaneous Occupancy Signage 

Residential .......... 1 Residential .......... 5 Residential .......... 0 Commercial ........ 1 

Commercial ........ 5 Commercial ........ 3 Commercial ........ 4 Commercial ........ 0 

 

Electrical Plumbing Utility Demolition 

Residential .......... 2 Residential .......... 0 Residential .......... 0 Residential .......... 1 

Commercial ........ 3 Commercial ........ 0 Commercial ........ 0 Commercial ........ 0 

 

Public ROW Rental Licences Rental Inspections  

Res./Comm. ........ 6 Issued ................. 31 Pass .................... 46 

Commercial ........ 0 Commercial ........ 0 Fail........................ 3 

 

Plans, Reviews, Amendments and Appeals Certificates of Appropriateness 



(ZA, RPR, SR, ZMA, ZTA, SRA) Issued ................... 2 

Subdivision Review ..................................... 0 Request for Change/Amendment 

 Issued ................... 0 

 

Revenue from ‘Issued’ Permits/Reviews: 

Building Permits ........................................................ $3,255.00 

Miscellaneous Permits ................................................... 105.00 

Occupancy Permits ........................................................ 120.00 

Sign Permits ...................................................................... 16.50 

Utility Permits..................................................................... 0.00 

Plan reviews, Amendments & appeals ..........................  0.00 

Zoning Classification (information request) .................. 0.00 

Municipal Infractions (citations) ...................................... 0.00 

Certificates of Appropriateness ..................................... 60.00 

Rental Licenses (new & renewals) ............................ 4,075.00 

Paid Rental Inspection Requests ........................................ .00 

TOTAL  ...................................................................... $7,631.50 

 

Demolition Bonds Collected .................................... $1,500.00 

 
 

 

Community Development Programs 
November 2022 

Lee Borror, Senior Community Development Specialist 

 
 

 

City CDBG Projects 

All Environmental Review Records and Contracts for 2022 CDBG are completed and signed; all projects are 

underway. 

Cumberland 2021 Consolidated Annual Performance Evaluation Report approved by HUD 

Cumberland 2022 Line of Credit Delayed due to HUD inaction (signed contract sent September 16 and 

November 2.  

There have been no new draws. 

See October 2022 Report for most updated information. 

 

City CDBG CARES ACT Projects 

All CDBG-CV projects are under contract and underway. 

No draws since October 2022 Report 

 

City ARPA Projects 

Jane's Place, Inc. -underway, no significant draws 

YMCA Bus Purchase - re-evaluated and contract pending notification to M & CC 

PIP Program- files complete, contractors chosen, 3 units in the pilot rehabilitation program estimated 

underway beginning December 2022 

 

Cumberland Human Relations Commission  



October Retreat/Planning Session Completed, updated Fair Housing Strategic Plan 

Met in November-no quorum present 

 
 

 

Historic Planning/Preservation 

November 2022 

 

Ruth Davis-Rogers, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 

 

In addition to serving the public and answering daily questions and inquires I did the following: 

 

Personal Training 

Continue to train and learn the following systems: 

 Logos 

 Citizenserve 

 Municode 

 Intelligrants (State of MD) 

 Civicplus 

 

Historic Preservation Commission Meeting (HPC) 

 Prepared and administered the Historic Preservation Meeting on November 16th 

 Reviewed and administered Certificate of Appropriateness permits 

 

Meetings & Events 

 Attended meeting for Allegany Center of Lifelong Learning 

 Attended site visit meeting with Clock Towner Ventures  

 Attended Downtown Development Commission Meeting 

 Attended meeting with Allegany Museum and local educational leaders about partnering on an local 

history component for youth 

 Attended Leadership Allegany 

 Attended meeting to discuss Roof Replacement Program projects 

 Hosted visit from Preservation Maryland  

 Served on CIP Grant Review Committee 

 Attended ALLCON meeting 

 Attended meeting Carver Center Mtg.  

 

Grants, Tax Credits and Section 106 reviews 

Administered/managed funding/grants for: 

 Residential Accessibility Improvement $50,000. 

 Roof Replacement Program $50,000. 

 Conducted Section 106 Reviews (as needed) for CDBG funding. 

 Answered questions (as needed) regarding tax incentives from both current and potential building 

owners.  

 

 

 
 



 

Comptroller’s Office 

Financial Activity Report November 2022 

Mark Gandolfi, City Comptroller 

 

 

Cash Flow: 

 

Attached for your review is a Cash Flow Summary for the month of November 2022.   

 

On November 1, 2022, the City had a cash balance of $16.2 million ($15.2 million invested in a value 

money market program and $1.0 million participating in a sweep program at First United Bank).  Receipts 

exceeded disbursements by $723 thousand resulting in a cash balance of $17 million at November 30, 2022 

($14.4 million invested in a value money market program and $2.4 million participating in a sweep 

program at First United Bank).    

 

As of November 30, 2022, the significant tax receivable balances were as reflected in the table below.   

     

     

Taxes receivable (General Fund) 3,939,166$     

Beg Balance New Billings

Adjustments/ 

Abatements Collections Bad Debt Ending Balance

FY 2023 3,341,791$   286,241$        (753)$           842,578$      -$                2,784,701$     

FY 2022 657,220 3,201              (562)             9,755            -$                650,104

FY 2021 259,151        -                 (59)               -                   -                  251,552          

FY 2020 94,327          -                 -               -                   -                  94,242            

FY 2019 37,989          17                   -               -                   -                  38,006            

FY 2018 36,671          -                 -               -                   -                  36,671            

FY 2017 16,422          -                 -               -                   -                  16,422            

FY 2016 16,988          -                 -               -                   -                  16,988            

FY 2015 17,459          -                 -               -                   -                  17,459            

FY 2014 12,746          -                 -               -                   -                  12,746            

FY 2013 9,152            -                 -               -                   -                  9,152              

FY 2012 5,385            -                 -               -                   -                  5,385              

FY 2011 2,963            -                 -               -                   -                  2,963              

Prior FY's 2,775            -                 -               -                   -                  2,775              

4,511,039$   289,459$        (1,374)$        852,333$      -$                3,939,166$      
 

$1,094,910 

7,689

489,913

1,192,189

0

$2,784,701 

Real Property (Half Year)

The current year tax receivable balance is comprised of the following:

Real property (non-owner occupied)

Non-Corp Personal Property

Corporate Personal Property

Real Property (semiannual payments)

 
 

 

 

 

The City’s liquidity position continues to be strong as illustrated in the following cash and investments 

table. Restricted cash and investments are comprised primarily of invested American Rescue Plan Act 



(ARPA) funds received in advance and bond proceeds restricted to associated capital projects and 

expenditures.   

 

Cash Investments

Beginning Balance 16,190,392$     30,223,992$   

Add:

Cash Receipts 10,724,429       77,789              

Investment Transfer -                      -                     

Less:

Disbursements 10,001,370       -                     

Investment Transfer -                      -                     

Ending Balance 16,913,451$     30,301,781$   

Restricted 6,915,307$       9,870,633$      

Cash and Investment Summary

November 30, 2022

 

 

The table below illustrates cash restrictions and restricted investments associated with specific 

expenditures and/or capital projects.   

 
Restricted Cash

11/30/2022  Increase Utilization 11/30/2022

Police Seizures 112,409$           -$               -$                112,409$           

Est of Dorothy Jackson 89                       -                 -                  89                        

Bowers Trust 70,636               -                 -                  70,636                

Street Improvement -                      -                 -                  -                      

GOB 21 1,952,114          4,810             44,615            1,912,309          

ARPA 4,751,681          11,707           -                  4,763,388          

Demolition & Fiscal Agent Bonds 56,476               -                 -                  56,476                

6,943,405$       16,517$         44,615$         6,915,307$        

Restricted Investments

11/30/2022  Increase Utilization 11/30/2022

DDC 4,940$               13$                 -$                4,953$                

GOB 21 3,511                 9                     -                  3,520$                

ARPA 9,836,842          25,318           -                  9,862,160$        

9,845,293$       25,340$         -$                9,870,633$         

 

Increases to GOB21, ARPA and DDC are interest earnings on funds awaiting planned use.   

 

The DDC restricted investment was funded through donations and is restricted for the purpose of 

maintenance of the Wes Han Fountain in the Downtown Mall. 

 

GOB 21 is the FY21 general obligation bond issuance restricted for scheduled capital projects and 

equipment. 

 

Estate of Dorothy Jackson is donations for fire, police and police K-9. 

Capital Projects and Associated Debt: 

 

The tables below illustrate undrawn Maryland CDA bond proceeds and unused general obligation bond 

proceeds (GOB21) as well as the accumulated debt and grant proceeds associated with the Decatur Street 

waterline and the Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) projects. 



 
Available Bond Proceeds

11/1/2022 Increase Utilization 11/30/2022

CDA 2019 883,547$             -$                -$                   883,547$              

CDA 2021 5,779,326            -                  45,661               5,733,665             

G0B 21 1,955,625            -                  39,797               1,915,828             

8,618,497$          -$                85,457$            8,533,040$           

Decatur Street Project

11/1/2022 Increase Utilization 11/30/2022

MWQFA Series 2022A 726,064$             -$                -$                   726,064$              

MWQFA Series 2022B 273,460               -                  -                     273,460                 

Decatur Street Grants 352,277               -                  -                     352,277                 

1,351,801$          -$                -$                   1,351,801$           

CSO Projects

11/1/2022 Increase Utilization 11/30/2022

Evitts Creek Debt 156,740$             -$                -$                   156,740$              

Evitts Creek Grant 5,418,560            -                  -                     5,418,560             

78" Pipeline Debt 6,075,000            -                  -                     6,075,000             

78" Pipeline  Grant 46,338,080          -                  -                     46,338,080           

57,988,380$        -$                -$                   57,988,380$          
 

CDA 2021 utilization of $46K includes $17K for a Street Department pavement roller, and $29K for a 

Sewer Department flex-wing rotary grass cutter. GOB 21 utilization of $45K includes 1K toward a Sewer 

Department utility vehicle, $34K toward the influent screen design, $2K toward the McMullen Bridge 

design, and $8K toward the Avondale water line replacement; reduced by $5K interest earned.   

 

The Decatur Street waterline project is funded with $1.0 in grants and $2.1 million in loans with $0.5 

million of the loan amount being forgivable after 10 years. Construction is in process and expected to be 

complete December 31, 2022. 

 

The following three projects are major upgrades to the combined sewer collection system.  Evitts Creek 

Phase 3 is in the engineering phase with the majority of the necessary funding in place. Phase 3 project 

cost is estimated at $7.5 million and is partially funded with $5.4 million in grants and $0.2 million in loan. 

Phase 3 is on hold pending site access being granted by CSX. Evitts Creek Phase 4 is in the planning phase 

and funding is being sought from Maryland Department of the Environment (MDE) to begin the 

engineering phase in FY 23. Phase 4 project cost is estimated at $4 million. The 78” pipeline project is 

budgeted to begin construction during FY24 pending Army Corp of Engineers approval and private 

property easement or acquisition. The total estimated project cost is $67 million and is partially funded 

with $46.3 million in grants and $6.1 million in loan with $1.5 million of the loan amount being forgivable. 

 

COVID-19: 

 

Available Funding (as of November 30, 2022) 

 

The City received $19,595,850 from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).  The U.S. Treasury issued guidance 

providing greater details on the eligible uses and priority of these funds.  These are: 

 Support public health expenditures  

 Address negative economic impacts caused by the public health emergency 

 Replace lost public sector revenue 

 Provide premium pay for essential workers 

 Invest in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure 



 

Funds available for use: 

 

 Budgeted 

 Allocated 

Interest Earned  Utilized  Remaining 

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)  $19,595,850 

     Respond to the health emergency

          Community Programs

DDC Assistance to Small Businesses  $     183,500  $     28,435  $     155,065 

Promoting the Community  $       33,563  $     30,312  $         3,251 

Amphitheatre and Pavilion 1&2  $     174,350  $            10,650  $       3,971  $     181,029 

Pool Area  $       71,250  $            81,245  $             -    $     152,495 

Janes Place for Abused Children  $     102,623  $       7,947  $       94,676 

Union Rescue Mission  $     750,000  $   749,000  $         1,000 

Community Development Property Improvement  $     364,960  $             -    $     364,960 

Affordable Housing Assistance  $     250,000  $             -    $     250,000 

YMCA Bus Replacement  $     216,000  $             -    $     216,000 

          PPE

               General  $       50,089  $     28,779  $       21,310 

               Facilities and Equipment  $       15,911  $     15,911  $               -   

Prisoner Processing Improvements  $     176,200  $             -    $     176,200 
HVAC improvement at City Hall & Public Safety 

Buildings  $  1,300,000  $             -    $  1,300,000 

     Premium Pay  $     833,952  $   833,952  $               -   

     Revenue Loss  $10,000,000  $4,149,913  $  5,850,087 

     Infrastructure Investments

          Water  $  5,073,452  $             -    $  5,073,452 

Unallocated Interest Earned  $               -    $             -    $       37,025 

     Total:  $19,595,850  $19,595,850  $            91,895  $5,848,222  $13,876,548 

Purpose  Awarded  

 Allocation 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

       Jeffrey Silka 

       City Administrator 

 

       sln 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Maintenance Division monthly reports for October and November, 2022





























File Attachments for Item:

. November 2022 Monthly Police Report











File Attachments for Item:

. Utilities Division (Water/Sewer/Flood) November Monthly Report











File Attachments for Item:

1. Approval of the Closed, Work, and Regular Session Minutes of September 6, 2022, and the Closed 

Session Minutes of September 13, 2022





1 
 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
WORK SESSION 
City Hall Council Chambers 

57 N. Liberty Street 

Cumberland, MD 21502 
 

Tuesday, September 6, 2022, 5:30 p.m. 
 

 

PRESENT:  Raymond M. Morriss, President; Council Members: Richard Cioni (by phone), Joe George, 

and Laurie Marchini.  Council Member Eugene Frazier was absent. 

 

ALSO PRESENT: Jeffrey Silka, City Administrator; Michael Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie Woodring, 

City Clerk  

 

Media:  Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News 

 

I. PUBLIC MEETING AGENDA REVIEW-SEPTEMBER 6, 2022 

 
Mayor Morriss reviewed the public meeting agenda.  There was discussion about the Engineering 

Department not having an update report for the month of August.  There was also discussion 

about when Fayette Street paving would begin, since the water lines have been completed.  Mr. 

Silka stated he would get the information for Council tomorrow. 

 

Mr. Silka advised that there are three public hearings on the agenda due to a procedural error in 

the three Charter Amendments, so they are being reposted.  Mr. Cohen explained further. 

 

Mr. Silka inquired if anyone had any specific questions about any Agenda items.  Mayor and City 

Council replied no. 

 

Councilman George discussed Bill Atkinson running for County Commissioner, and if he would 

still be the consultant on the River Park project if he wins.  Mayor Morriss advised that he would 

get with Mr. Atkinson about it. 

 

There was discussion about the Allegany High School façade.  Mr. Silka advised that there has 

been no interest in it, and Mayor Morriss stated that Michael Thompson, Jr. of Fade to Blue is 

working on trying to find grant funding for it.   

 

Council discussed Mayor Morriss’ meeting with Congressman Trone regarding the Fayette Street 

Bridge.  The Mayor stated that he’s in town giving updates on several projects, and there was talk 

about asking Trone to put the Fayette Street Bridge project on a fast-track. 

 

II. HOTEL-MOTEL 

 

Mr. Silka advised that there is a place-holder in the budget of $45K; however, it can be adjusted.  

He added that the allocation of the money is not the entire allocation, just a re-allocation of a 

portion of it. 

 



2 
 

Council and staff discussed the pre-funding letters that went out, and the few organizations that 

have not submitted this year, with Mr. Silka advising that said organizations had been contacted 

multiple times with no response. 

Mayor Morriss advised on the best way to fill out the individual funding recommendation 

spreadsheet, that has formulas built in to total and average funding amounts. 

 

There was discussion about the time frame, with Mayor Morriss stating the sooner the better, at 

least by the end of the week or next Monday, to be able to discuss it at the Tuesday work session. 

 

Council discussed the amounts asked for this this year doubling what the set amount is, with 

Mayor Morris stating that the requests normally exceed the funding amount every year.  He added 

that to the best extent possible to make sure the bottom line stays within the budget of $45K.  

There was discussion about increasing the amount.  Mr. Silka stated that is up to M&CC. 

 

There was discussion about putting the organizations that are routinely funding actually in the 

budget, but it was found that most of them are regulars, so it was not feasible. 

 

Council discussed the requirements for this year, and the standard of “heads in beds”, with some 

flexibility.  It was noted that past administrations didn’t use that as a major consideration, and 

several that don’t meet that criteria were pointed out.   

 
 

III.  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 

 
Councilman George advised that once again there will be no Planning and Zoning Commission 

meeting or Evitts Creek Steering Committee meeting. 

 

Councilman Cioni discussed Let’s Beautify Cumberland and Parks and Rec.  He also noted that 

per Council’s discussion, he would run Pickle Ball by the P&R Board. 

 

Councilwoman Marchini discussed the committees she sits on, saying that most of them will meet 

this week.  She discussed inventorying things on the downtown mall – bike racks, benches, 

trashcans, etc.  She stated that there has been interest from some organizations to buy some of the 

inventory, or to donate it to other organizations. 

 

The Councilwoman discussed the Baltimore Street Access Project, saying they had their meeting 

last week, and that there will be a town hall meeting with business owners before Thanksgiving.  

She added that there is a mandatory bid meeting on August 31st, and stated that bids are due on 

September 21st. 

 

Mayor Morriss advised on the Baltimore Street Bridge Project, saying the bid came in last week, 

and said they will see what’s leftover for the Cumberland Street Bridge, using federal money. 

 

The Mayor advised on the WMSRR board meeting last week, stated all is going well, with Polar 

Express tickets already doing a brisk sale, and advised that the Moonlight Madness Train last 

Friday sold out.  He also mentioned the Pumpkin Patch Trains coming this fall. 

 

Mayor Morriss discussed the DHCD tour last week of the projects requested for the McMullen 

Building, the Allegany Museum and the Gateway Center. 

 



3 
 

The Mayor discussed the 2nd Annual Jane Gates Day on August 31st, and said it was good to 

watch progress on the grounds and building.  He also talked about the Greater Cumberland 

Committee Zoom meeting last week with the topic Outdoor Recreation and Economy and said the 

host of the meeting is working with 7-8 states in Appalachia on outdoor economics, and how to 

best position themselves. 

 

The Mayor discussed Purple Fest, which he attended with some of the Council Members, and 

stated that September is Recovery Month, as well as Childhood Cancer Awareness Month, and 

said City Hall will be lit up in purple. 

 

Greg Larry, Cumberland Times-News, asked how many organizations applied for Hotel-Motel 

funding this year, which is 19. 
 

IV.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m. 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 

 
 

 Allison K. Layton 

 City Clerk 

 
 Minutes approved  



Mayor and City Council of Cumberland  
 

Mayor Raymond M. Morriss 
Councilman Richard J. “Rock” Cioni 
Councilman Eugene T. Frazier 
Councilman Joseph P. George 
Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

City Administrator Jeffrey F. Silka 
City Solicitor Michael S. Cohen 

City Clerk Allison Layton 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

MINUTES  

M&CC Public Meeting 

City Hall 

 

DATE:    September 06, 2022 

 

 

I. OPEN SESSION – 6:15 p.m. 

II. Pledge of Allegiance 

III. Roll Call 

 Councilman Joseph P. George 

 Councilwoman Laurie P. Marchini 

 President Raymond M. Morriss 

 

 Councilmen Eugene T. Frazier and Richard J. “Rock” Cioni were absent 

 

Also Present:  Jeffrey F. Silka, City Administrator; Michael S. Cohen, City Solicitor; Marjorie 

Woodring, City Clerk; Chuck Ternent, Chief of Police; Shannon Adams, Fire Chief 

 

IV. Statement of Closed Meeting 

1.   Summary Statement of the closed meeting held September 6, 2022 

Mayor Morriss announced that a closed meeting had been held on September 6, 2022 at 

4:30 p.m. and read into the record a summary of that meeting, which is attached hereto 

and made a part of these minutes, as required under Section 3-306 (c)(2) of the General 

Provisions Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

V. Presentations 

1.     Presentation of City Star Awards to individuals who have gone above and beyond the 

expected to make a difference in our community. 

 Mayor Morriss read the list of the 5 people nominated for the City Star Award. 



Holly Fetters – nominated by Stephanie Williams for her work in the community,  

specifically opening her home to foster children and providing presents for families with 

children that don’t have the resources to do so. 

John Wunderlick – nominated by Mary Kiraly for his work in supporting the City, and 

his discovery of the 1753 George Washington Trail and connection in Butler County, PA, 

helping to secure permission to use the established Trail Medallion in Maryland. 

Joe Metzner – nominated by Jeff Hedrick, for delighting kids and parents alike in every 

neighborhood for about 40 years.  Affectionately known as “Sno-Cone Joe” he is the 

property manager of the Value City Shopping Center and works tirelessly to keep the 

area clean and crime-free, while often helping regulars there to get connected to services, 

jobs, etc. 

Alan Zapf – nominated by both Renee Kniseley and Bill Kimble for his work in 

supporting the City’s youth by starting a non-profit for area kids (Allegany Youth 

Enrichment Program) and devoted time to working directly with youth in the community. 

This was a team effort, and Ms. Kniseley and Mr. Kimble want to commend AYEPS for 

their work with youth as well. 

Doug Widdows – Doug was nominated by Maria Kiefer as the perfect example of 

leadership, compassion, and drive. Doug’s career in USA BMX spans 20 years, with his 

winning of multiple state, regional, and national races.  Doug recently changed his focus 

to bettering the community and has dedicated all of his free time to volunteer work, as 

well as donating his personal funds to local causes he holds dear.  He has also donated 

personal funds and assisted in the rebuild of the Riverside BMX track. 

The City Stars received their awards, as well as a round of applause and a sincere thank 

you from M&CC for their selfless work in supporting communities in the City of 

Cumberland. 

VI. Director's Reports 

Motion to approve the report was made by Councilman George, seconded by 

Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed on a vote of 4-0 

(A) Engineering 

1.   Engineering Department monthly report for July, 2022 

VI. Approval of Minutes 

Motion to approve the minutes was made by Councilwoman Marchini, seconded by 

Councilman Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

1.     Approval of the Work and Closed Session Minutes of April 26, 2022, and the Closed, Work, 

and Regular Session Minutes of May 3, 2022, and the Closed and Regular Session Minutes 

of May 17, 2022 

Councilman Cioni connected into meeting via phone at 6:31 p.m. 

 



VII. Public Hearings 

1. Public Hearing - to receive comment on proposed Charter Amendment Resolution No. 

149 to rescind Charter Amendment No. 145 and to repeal Section 75 of the Charter, which 

prohibits the carrying of a concealed weapon in accordance with Section 4-101 of the 

Criminal Law Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

 Convened  6:34 p.m. 

  No public comments 

 Adjourned 6:34 p.m. 

2. Public Hearing to receive comment on proposed Charter Amendment Resolution No. 150 

to rescind Charter Amendment No. 146 and to repeal and reenact with amendments Charter 

Section 24 pertaining to the publication of ordinances, when ordinances take effect, and the 

admissibility of codification in evidence. 

 Convened 6:35 p.m. 

  No public comments 

 Adjourned  6:35 p.m. 

3. Public Hearing to receive comment on proposed Charter Amendment Resolution No. 151 

to rescind Charter Amendment No. 147 and to repeal Charter Sections 192-203 pertaining to 

the Mayor and City Council's authority over the Memorial Hospital. 

 Convened  6:35 

  No public comments 

 Adjourned 6:36 

VIII. Unfinished Business 

(A) Ordinances 

1. Ordinance No. 3925 (2nd and 3rd readings) - to authorize the transfer of City-owned 

property at 728 Baker Street to Floyd F. Gregory, Jr. for the purchase price of $500. 

 SECOND READING: The ordinance was submitted in title only for its second reading.  

Motion to accept the second reading and move to the third after comment after comment 

was made by Councilman Cioni, seconded by Councilwoman Marchini, and was passed 

on a vote of 4-0. 

 Mayor Morriss called for questions or comments.  Being none, the ordinance moved to its 

third reading. 

 THIRD READING:  The ordinance was submitted in title only for its third reading and 

was passed on a vote of 4-0. 

IX. New Business 

(A) Ordinances 



1. Ordinance 3926 (1st reading) - approving the transfer of 471 Baltimore Avenue to 

Bechance, LLC for the purchase price of $100 and authorizing execution of a deed to 

effect the transfer. 

 FIRST READING:  The ordinance was submitted in title only for its first reading.  

Motion to accept the first reading and table until next meeting was made by Councilman 

George, seconded by Councilman Cioni, and was passed on a vote of 3-0, with 

Councilwoman Marchini leaving the meeting at time of vote. 

 

(B) Orders (Consent Agenda) 

 Order 27,074 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY23 Sex Offender 

Compliance Grant in the amount of $18,071.00 for Cumberland Police Department and 

Allegany County Sheriff's Office overtime to perform compliance checks by conducting 

home visits of registered sex offenders to confirm residency. 

 Order 27,075 - authorizing the Chief of Police to accept a FY23 Maryland Center for 

School Safety (MCSS) SRO grant in the amount of $49,245.00 to provide adequate 

police coverage in and around city schools, pay officers' overtime to supplement school 

resource activities, and provide additional officers to patrol during school time and 

extracurricular activities. 

 Order 27,076 - accepting the State bid from Hertrich Fleet Services Inc. for five (5) 

police vehicles at a total not-to-exceed cost of $247,140.00. 

 Order 27,077 - rescinding Order No. 27,055 because of a misstated purchase amount and 

accepting the sole source proposal from L/B Water Service, Inc. to provide water meters 

and smartpoints for FY23 in the amount not-to-exceed $335,000. 

 Order 27,078 - appointing Jeffrey F. Silka, City Administrator, as a City representative 

to the Enterprise Zone Advisory Committee effective this date. 

 Order 27,079 - accepting the proposal from MuniLink to provide FY23 software hosting 

and support services for the City's utility billing system in the amount not-to-exceed 

$43,016.62. 

 Order 27,080 - abating real estate and special taxing district taxes for 118 Baltimore 

Street, owned by the Cumberland Economic Development Corporation. 

 Order 27,081 - approving a residential exemption from the Special Taxing District Levy 

for the 2022-2023 tax year for 33 N. Centre Street in the amount of $600.72. 

 Order 27,082 - reappointing Dan Bowser to the Downtown Development Commission 

and Harold Hipsley to the Shade Tree Commission. 

 Order 27,083 - accepting the proposal from KONE, Inc. to rehabilitate two (2) elevators 

in the Public Safety Building for the amount not-to-exceed $440,000. 

  Mr. Silka advised that this proposal was budgeted for this fiscal year. 

 



 Order 27,084 - authorizing execution of Change Order No. 1 to the Residential Grass 

Mowing Project (14-22-M) with Casey Smith, LLC dba/ ServicePro, for the increased 

not-to-exceed amount of $6,300.00; bringing the total contract amount to $59,690.00. 

  Mr. Silka advised that there were six properties added into this contract. 

X. Letters / Petitions 

1.   Report from the City Clerk advising of the official results of the 2022 Cumberland 

Municipal Primary Election as certified by the Maryland Board of Elections, showing that the 

four (4) highest vote getters and those whose names will be placed on the General Election 

Ballot for November 8, 2022, are Rock Cioni, Mary Conlon, James Leo Furstenberg, III, and 

Joseph Paul George  

XI. Public Comments 

Maria Stallings, 12801 Cresap Street, Apt. 4, Cresaptown, talked about tourism and expanding 

the bike trail from Cumberland to Bowling Green, via the railroad tracks on Beall Street and 

Kelly Road. 

Mayor Morriss advised that they will take a look at it with the County, and see if it’s possible. 

David Biser, 17 Long Drive, Cumberland, retired law enforcement officer, talked about the 

shortage of police officers in Cumberland.  He stated the City does need a fully staffed police 

department, and advised that it’s a long process to become an officer, with only a small portion of 

those that sign up making it through.  He encouraged M&CC to work with the Police Department 

to get them fully staffed.  Mr. Biser continued and repeated the same sentiments to the Fire 

Department and the Water Department, saying they should be fully staffed and supported. 

Mayor Morriss assured Mr. Biser that M&CC fully support these departments and are very proud 

of them.  He agreed that hiring and retention is difficult, and said they will do their best to hire 

and retain in all the departments. 

Council agreed, saying the City is blessed to have so many good officers in both the Fire and 

Police Departments, and stated that Cumberland’s public safety and leadership is the envy of 

small towns all over the country. 

Chief Ternent advised that Mr. Biser had trained past officers at the CPD, as well as himself. 

 

All public comments are limited to 5 minutes per person 

 

XII. Adjournment  

 With no further business at hand, the meeting adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 

 

 Minutes approved on _________________________ 

 

 Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor ___________________________ 



 

 ATTEST: Allison K. Layton, City Clerk __________________________ 





File Attachments for Item:

1. Ordinance 3936 (2nd and 3rd readings) - an ordinance to repeal and re-enact with amendments 

sections 19-2 to 19-5 of Chapter 19 of the Code of the City entitled "Public Ethics" for the purpose of 

complying with state law



ORDINANCE NO. 3936 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, 

MARYLAND, ENTITLED “AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL AND RE-ENACT WITH 

AMENDMENTS SECTIONS 19-2 TO 19-5, INCLUSIVE, OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE 

CODE OF THE CITY OF CUMBERLAND ENTITLED ‘PUBLIC ETHICS’, WITH 

RESPECT TO SECTIONS 19-2, 19-4 AND 19-5, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 

COMPLYING WITH STATE LAW REQUIRING THAT LOCAL ETHICS LAWS 

PERTAINING TO ELECTED LOCAL OFFICIALS, CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND 

FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE BE EQUIVALENT TO OR EXCEED THE REQUIREMENTS 

OF APPLICABLE STATE LAW, AND, WITH RESPECT TO SECTION 19-3, FOR 

THE PURPOSE OF MAKING CHANGES IN THE DISCRETION OF THE MAYOR AND 

CITY COUNCIL.” 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cumberland Public Ethics Law, Chapter 19 

of the Code of the City of Cumberland, sets forth the City of 

Cumberland’s laws relative to public ethics; 

 WHEREAS, the Maryland General Assembly passed legislation 

effective October 1, 2011 (Md. State Govt. Code Ann. §§ 15-804(b) 

& 15-805(b)(2) requiring that local governments enact public 

ethics regulations for elected local officials relative to 

conflicts of interest and financial disclosure that are equivalent 

to or exceed State law standards;  

 WHEREAS, the Maryland General Assembly passes legislation 

from time to time that amends State law standards pertaining to 

ethics, which in turn, requires that local governments amend their 

ethics laws to meet or exceed the amended State law standards;   

 WHEREAS, as required on account of changes in State law, this 

Ordinance provides for the amendment of Sections 19-2, 19-4 and 

19-5 so that their terms will meet or exceed State law standards;  

 WHEREAS, the changes to Section 19-3 are not required by State 

law but are being made to allow the City Solicitor discretion to 

recuse himself from his obligation to advise the Administrative 



Appeals Board from time to time, as there are occasions where such 

recusal is appropriate; 

 WHEREAS, State law requires that local governments obtain the 

State Ethics Commission’s approval for changes made to their public 

ethics laws; and 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the aforesaid State law, the City 

provided the State Ethics Commission with documentation showing 

the changes to the Public Ethics Law that would be effected by 

this Ordinance, and by correspondence dated November 17, 2022, the 

State Ethics Commission notified the City Solicitor that it 

approved of such changes.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND: 

 SECTION 1.  That Sections 19-2 to 19-5, inclusive, of the 

Code of the City of Cumberland (1991 Edition), be and they are 

hereby repealed and reenacted, the said reenacted provisions being 

set forth in the Exhibit A attached hereto and a text-edited 

version showing the changes made to existing law upon the passage 

of this Ordinance is attached hereto and incorporated by reference 

herein as Exhibit B: 

 SECTION 2:  AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance 

shall take effect from the date of its passage. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

 



 Passed this _____ day of December, 2022. 

 

      ___________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Allison K. Layton, City Clerk 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



EXHIBIT A 

Sec. 19-2. - Definitions.  
Designated second home means:  

(1)  If an individual owns one second home, the individual's second home; or  

(2)  If an individual owns more than one second home, any one second home the individual identifies 
to the board as the individual's designated second home.  

Home address means the address of an individual's:  

(1)  Principal home; and  

(2)  Designated second home, if any.  

Interest means:  

(1)  A legal or equitable economic interest, whether or not subject to an encumbrance or a condition, 
that is owned or held, in whole or in part, jointly or severally, directly or indirectly.  

(2)  For purposes of this chapter, interest includes any interest held at any time during the reporting 
period.  

(3)  Interest does not include:  

a.  An interest held in the capacity of a personal agent, custodian, fiduciary, personal 
representative, or trustee, unless the holder has an equitable interest in the subject matter;  

b.  An interest in a time or demand deposit in a financial institution;  

c.  An interest in an insurance policy, endowment policy, or annuity contract under which an 
insurer promises to pay a fixed amount of money either in a lump sum or periodically for life 
or a specified period;  

d.  A common trust fund or a trust which forms part of a pension or profit sharing plan which has 
more than 25 participants and which has been determined by the Internal Revenue Service 
to be a qualified trust under the Internal Revenue Code;  

e.  A college savings plan under the Internal Revenue Code; or  

f.  A mutual fund or exchange-traded fund that is publicly traded on a national scale unless the 
mutual fund or exchange-traded fund is composed primarily of holdings of stocks and 
interests in a specific sector or area that is regulated by the individual's governmental unit.  

Principal home means the sole residential property that an individual occupies as the individual's 
primary residence, whether owned or rented by the individual.  

Qualified relative means a spouse, parent, child, brother, or sister.  

Quasi-governmental entity means an entity that is created by state statute, that performs a public 
function, and that is supported in whole or in part by the state but is managed privately. 

Second home means a residential property that:  

(1)  An individual occupies for some portion of the filing year; and  

(2)  Is not a rental property or a time share.  

 
 
Sec. 19-3. - Administrative appeals board.  
(a)  There is an administrative appeals board (the "board") created under section 238 of the Charter that 

consists of five (5) members appointed by the mayor and city council. The board shall be the advisory 
body responsible for interpreting this chapter and advising persons subject to it as to its application.  



(b)  The board shall:  

(1)  Devise, receive, and maintain all forms required by this chapter;  

(2)  Develop procedures and policies for advisory opinion requests and provide published advisory 
opinions to persons subject to this chapter regarding the applicability of the provisions of this 
chapter to them;  

(3) Develop procedures and policies for the processing of complaints to make appropriate 
determinations regarding complaints filed by any person alleging violations of this chapter; and  

(4)  Conduct a public information program regarding the purposes and application of this chapter.  

(c)  The city solicitor shall advise the board. The city solicitor shall have the right to recuse himself from 
this obligation, in which event, the city administrator may retain the services of outside counsel. 

(d)  The board shall certify to the state ethics commission on or before October 1 of each year that the city 
is in compliance with the requirements of General Provisions Article, Ann. Code of Md. tit. 5 subtit. 8, 
for elected local officials.  

(e)  The board shall determine if changes to this chapter are required to be in compliance with the 
requirements of General Provisions Article, Ann. Code of Md. tit. 5 subtit. 8, and shall forward any 
recommended changes and amendments to the mayor and city council for enactment.  

(f)  Any official or other person subject to the provisions of this chapter may request the board for an 
advisory opinion concerning the application of this chapter. The board shall respond promptly to these 
requests, providing interpretations of this chapter based on the facts provided or reasonably available 
to it. Copies of these interpretations shall be made available to the public upon request.  

(g)  Any person may file with the board a complaint alleging a violation of any of the provisions of this 
chapter. These complaints shall be written and under oath, and may be referred to the city solicitor, or 
other legal counsel if appropriate, for investigation and review. If, after receiving an investigative report, 
the board determines that there are insufficient facts upon which to base a determination of a violation, 
it may dismiss the complaint. If there is a reasonable basis for believing a violation has occurred, then 
the subject of the complaint shall be afforded an opportunity for a hearing conducted in accordance 
with the board's applicable rules of procedure for actions taken on the record. Any final determination 
resulting from the hearing shall include findings of fact and conclusions of law. Upon a finding of a 
violation, the board may take any enforcement action provided for in accordance with section 19-9.  

(h)  The board may adopt other policies and procedures to assist in the implementation of the board's 
programs established in this chapter.  



Sec. 19-4. - Conflicts of interest.  
(a)  Applicability. All city elected officials, officials appointed to city boards and commissions subject to this 

chapter, and employees are subject to this section.  

(b)  Participation prohibitions. Except as permitted by board regulation or opinion, an official or employee may 
not participate in:  

(1)  Except in the exercise of an administrative or ministerial duty that does not affect the disposition or 
decision of the matter, any matter in which, to the knowledge of the official or employee, the official 
or employee, or a qualified relative of the official or employee has an interest.  

(2)  Except in the exercise of an administrative or ministerial duty that does not affect the disposition or 
decision with respect to the matter, any matter in which any of the following is a party:  

a.  A business entity in which the official or employee has a direct financial interest of which the 
official or employee may reasonably be expected to know;  

b.  A business entity for which the official, employee, or a qualified relative of the official or 
employee is an officer, director, trustee, partner, or employee;  

c.  A business entity with which the official or employee or, to the knowledge of the official or 
employee, a qualified relative is negotiating employment or has any arrangement concerning 
prospective employment;  

d.  If the contract reasonably could be expected to result in a conflict between the private interests 
of the official or employee and the official duties of the official or employee, a business entity 
that is a party to an existing contract with the official or employee, or which, to the knowledge 
of the official or employee, is a party to a contract with a qualified relative;  

e.  An entity, doing business with the city, in which a direct financial interest is owned by another 
entity in which the official or employee has a direct financial interest, if the official or employee 
may be reasonably expected to know of both direct financial interests; or  

f.   A business entity that:  

1.  The official or employee knows is a creditor or obligee of the official or employee or a 
qualified relative of the official or employee with respect to a thing of economic value; and  

2.  As a creditor or obligee, is in a position to directly and substantially affect the interest of 
the official or employee or a qualified relative of the official or employee.  

(3)  A person who is disqualified from participating under paragraphs (1) or (2) of this subsection shall 
disclose the nature and circumstances of the conflict and may participate or act if:  

a.  The disqualification leaves a body with less than a quorum capable of acting;  

b.  The disqualified official or employee is required by law to act; or  

c.  The disqualified official or employee is the only person authorized to act.  

(4)  The prohibitions of paragraph (1) and (2) of this subsection do not apply if participation is allowed 
by regulation or opinion of the board.  

(5)  A former regulated lobbyist who is or becomes subject to this chapter as an employee or official, 
other than an elected official or an appointed official, may not participate in a case, contract, or other 
specific matter as an employee or official, other than an elected official or appointed official, for one 
calendar year after the termination of the registration of the former regulated lobbyist if the former 
regulated lobbyist previously assisted or represented another party for compensation in the matter.  

(c)  Employment and financial interest restrictions.  

(1)  Except as permitted by regulation of the board when the interest is disclosed or when the 
employment does not create a conflict of interest or appearance of conflict, an official or employee 
may not:  

a.  Be employed by or have a financial interest in any entity:  

1.  Subject to the authority of the official or employee or the city agency, board, commission 
with which the official or employee is affiliated; or  



2.  That is negotiating or has entered a contract with the agency, board, or commission with 
which the official or employee is affiliated. 

b.  Hold any other employment relationship that would impair the impartiality or independence of 
judgment of the official or employee.  

c. Hold any outside employment that impairs the employee’s ability to perform or availability for 
the performance of the employee’s job duties with the City, 

d. Wear the uniform of another employer or any other clothing with the name, logo or any other 
reference to the other employer. 

e. Solicit work for the employee’s outside employer.   

(2)  This prohibition does not apply to:  

a.  An official or employee who is appointed to a regulatory or licensing authority pursuant to a 
statutory requirement that persons subject to the jurisdiction of the authority be represented in 
appointments to the authority;  

b.  Subject to other provisions of law, a member of a board or commission in regard to a financial 
interest or employment held at the time of appointment, provided the financial interest or 
employment is publicly disclosed to the appointing authority and the board;  

c.  An official or employee whose duties are ministerial, if the private employment or financial 
interest does not create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest, as 
permitted by and in accordance with regulations adopted by the board; or  

d.  Employment or financial interests allowed by regulation of the board if the employment does 
not create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest or the financial interest 
is disclosed.  

(d)  Post-employment limitations and restrictions.  

(1)  A former official or employee may not assist or represent any party other than the city for 
compensation in a case, contract, or other specific matter involving the city if that matter is one in 
which the former official or employee significantly participated as an official or employee.  

(2)  A former elected official may not assist or represent another party for compensation in a matter that 
is the subject of legislative action for one calendar year after the elected official leaves office.  

(e)  Contingent compensation. Except in a judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding, an official or employee may 
not assist or represent a party for contingent compensation in any matter before or involving the city.  

(f)  Use of prestige of office.  

(1)  An official or employee may not intentionally use the prestige of office or public position for the 
private gain of that official or employee or the private gain of another, or to influence, except as part 
of the official duties of the official or employee or as a usual and customary constituent service 
without additional compensation, the award of a state or local contract to a specific person.  

(2)  An official may not directly or indirectly initiate a solicitation for a person to retain the compensated 
services of a particular regulated lobbyist or lobbying firm.  

(3)  This subsection does not prohibit the performance of usual and customary constituent services by 
an elected local official without additional compensation.  

(4)  An official, other than an elected official, or employee may not use public resources or the title of the 
official or employee to solicit a contribution as that term is defined in the Election Law Article.  

(5)  An elected official may not use public resources to solicit a contribution as that term is defined in the 
Election Law Article.  

(g)  Solicitation and acceptance of gifts.  

(1)  An official or employee may not solicit any gift.  

(2)  An official or employee may not directly solicit or facilitate the solicitation of a gift, on behalf of another 
person, from an individual regulated lobbyist.  

(3)  An official or employee may not knowingly accept a gift, directly or indirectly, from a person that the 
official or employee knows or has the reason to know:  



a.  Is doing business with or seeking to do business with the city office, agency, board, or 
commission with which the official or employee is affiliated;  

b.  Has financial interests that may be substantially and materially affected, in a manner 
distinguishable from the public generally, by the performance or nonperformance of the official 
duties of the official or employee;  

c.   Is engaged in an activity regulated or controlled by the official's or employee's governmental 
unit 

d.   Is a lobbyist with respect to matters within the jurisdiction of the official or employee; or 

e. Is an association, or any entity acting on behalf of an association that is engaged only in 
representing counties or municipal corporations.  

(4)  Paragraph (5) of this subsection does not apply to a gift:  

a.  That would tend to impair the impartiality and the independence of judgment of the official or 
employee receiving the gift;  

b.  Of significant value that would give the appearance of impairing the impartiality and 
independence of judgment of the official or employee; or  

c.  Of significant value that the recipient official or employee believes or has reason to believe is 
designed to impair the impartiality and independence of judgment of the official or employee.  

(5) Notwithstanding paragraph (3) of this subsection, an official or employee may accept the following:  

a.  Meals and beverages consumed in the presence of the donor or sponsoring entity;  

b.  Ceremonial gifts or awards that have insignificant monetary value;  

c.  Unsolicited gifts of nominal value that do not exceed twenty dollars ($20.00) in cost or trivial 
items of informational value;  

d.  Reasonable expenses for food, travel, lodging, and scheduled entertainment of the official or 
the employee at a meeting which is given in return for the participation of the official or employee 
in a panel or speaking engagement at the meeting;  

e.  Gifts of tickets or free admission extended to an elected local official to attend a charitable, 
cultural, or political event, if the purpose of this gift or admission is a courtesy or ceremony 
extended to the elected official's office;  

f.   A specific gift or class of gifts that the board exempts from the operation of this subsection upon 
a finding, in writing, that acceptance of the gift or class of gifts would not be detrimental to the 
impartial conduct of the business of the city and that the gift is purely personal and private in 
nature;  

g.  Gifts from a person related to the official or employee by blood or marriage, or any other 
individual who is a member of the household of the official or employee; or  

h.  Honoraria for speaking to or participating in a meeting, provided that the offering of the 
honorarium is in not related in any way to the official's or employee's official position.  

(h)  Disclosure of confidential information. Other than in the discharge of official duties, an official, employee, 
or former official or employee may not disclose or use confidential information, that the official or 
employee acquired by reason of the individual’s public position and that is not available to the public, for 
the economic benefit of the official or employee or that of another person.  

(i)  Participation in procurement.  

(1)  An individual or a person that employs an individual who assists a city agency in the drafting of 
specifications, an invitation for bids, or a request for proposals for a procurement may not submit a 
bid or proposal for that procurement or assist or represent another person, directly or indirectly, who 
is submitting a bid or proposal for the procurement.  

(2)  The board may establish exemptions from the requirements of this section for providing 
descriptive literature, sole source procurements, and written comments solicited by the procuring 
agency.  



(j) Retaliation prohibited.  An official or employee may not retaliate against an individual for reporting or 
participating in an investigation of a potential violation of the local ethics law or ordinance. 

 

Sec. 19-5. - Financial disclosure—Local elected officials and candidates to be local elected officials.  
(a)  Applicability/financial disclosure statements.  

(1)  This section applies to all local elected officials and candidates to be local elected officials.  

(2)  Except as provided in subsection (b) of this section, a local elected official or a candidate to be a 
local elected official shall file the financial disclosure statement required under this section:  

a.  On a form provided by the board;  

b.  Under oath or affirmation; and  

c.  With the board.  

(3)  Deadlines for filing statements.  

a.  An incumbent local elected official shall file a financial disclosure statement annually no later 
than April 30 of each year for the preceding calendar year.  

b.  An individual who is appointed to fill a vacancy in an office for which a financial disclosure 
statement is required and who has not already filed a financial disclosure statement shall file a 
statement for the preceding calendar year within thirty (30) days after appointment.  

c.  1.  An individual who, other than by reason of death, leaves an office for which a statement is 
required shall file a statement within sixty (60) days after leaving the office.  

2.  The statement shall cover:  

i.   The calendar year immediately preceding the year in which the individual left office, 
unless a statement covering that year has already been filed by the individual; and  

ii.  The portion of the current calendar year during which the individual held the office.  

(b)  Candidates to be local elected officials.  

(1)  Except for an official who has filed a financial disclosure statement under another provision of this 
section for the reporting period, a candidate to be an elected local official shall file under a financial 
disclosure statement each year beginning with the year in which the certificate of candidacy is filed 
through the year of the election.  

(2)   A candidate to be an elected local official shall file a statement required under this section:  

a.  In the year the certificate of candidacy is filed, no later than the filing of the certificate of 
candidacy;  

b.  In the year of the election, on or before the earlier of April 30 or the last day for the withdrawal 
of candidacy; and  

c.  In all other years for which a statement is required, on or before April 30.  

(3)  A candidate to be an elected official shall file the statements required under subsection (b) with the 
city clerk.  

(4)  If a statement required to be filed by a candidate is overdue and not filed within eight (8) days after 
written notice of the failure to file is provided by the city clerk, the candidate shall be deemed to have 
withdrawn the candidacy.  

(5) The city clerk may not accept any certificate of candidacy unless a statement has been filed in proper 
form.  

(6)  Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of a statement required under this section, the city clerk shall 
forward the statement to the board or the office designated by the board.  

(c)  Public record.  

(1)  The city clerk shall maintain all financial disclosure statements filed under this section.  



(2)  Financial disclosure statements shall be made available during normal office hours for examination 
and copying by the public subject to reasonable fees and administrative procedures established by 
the board or the city.  

(3)  If an individual examines or copies a financial disclosure statement, the city clerk shall record:  

a.  The name and home address of the individual reviewing or copying the statement; and  

b.  The name of the person whose financial disclosure statement was examined or copied.  

(4)  Upon request by the official or employee whose financial disclosure statement was examined or 
copied, the city clerk shall provide the official with a copy of the name and home address of the 
person who reviewed the official's financial disclosure statement.  

(5)  For statements filed after January 1, 2019, the city clerk may not provide public access to an 
individual's home address that the individual has designated as the individual's home address. 

(6) The City Administrator shall not provide public access to information related to consideration received 
from: 

1.     The University of Maryland Medical System; 

2.     A governmental entity of the State or a local government in the State; or 

3.     A quasi-governmental entity of the State or local government in the State.  

(7)  An individual who is required to disclose the name of a business under this section shall disclose 
any other names that the business is trading as or doing business as. 

(d)  Retention requirements. The city clerk shall retain financial disclosure statements for four (4) years from 
the date of receipt.  

(e)  Contents of statement.  

(1)  Interests in real property.  

a.  A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all interests in real property 
wherever located.  

b.  For each interest in real property, the schedule shall include:  

1.  The nature of the property and the location by street address, mailing address, or legal 
description of the property;  

2.  The nature and extent of the interest held, including any conditions and encumbrances on 
the interest;  

3.  The date when, the manner in which, and the identity of the person from whom the interest 
was acquired;  

4.  The nature and amount of the consideration given in exchange for the interest or, if 
acquired other than by purchase, the fair market value of the interest at the time acquired;  

5.  If any interest was transferred, in whole or in part, at any time during the reporting period, 
a description of the interest transferred, the nature and amount of the consideration 
received for the interest, and the identity of the person to whom the interest was 
transferred; and  

6.  The identity of any other person with an interest in the property.  

(2)  Interests in corporations and partnerships.  

a.  A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all interests in any corporation, 
partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability corporation, regardless of whether the 
corporation or partnership does business with the city.  

b.  For each interest reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include:  

1.  The name and address of the principal office of the corporation, partnership, limited liability 
partnership, or limited liability corporation;  

2. The nature and amount of the interest held, including any conditions and encumbrances 
on the interest;  



3.  With respect to any interest transferred, in whole or in part, at any time during the reporting 
period, a description of the interest transferred, the nature and amount of the consideration 
received for the interest, and, if known, the identity of the person to whom the interest was 
transferred; and  

4.  With respect to any interest acquired during the reporting period:  

i.  The date when, the manner in which, and the identity of the person from whom the 
interest was acquired; and  

ii.  The nature and the amount of the consideration given in exchange for the interest or, 
if acquired other than by purchase, the fair market value of the interest at the time 
acquired.  

c.  An individual may satisfy the requirement to report the amount of the interest held under item 
b.2. of this paragraph by reporting, instead of a dollar amount:  

1.  For an equity interest in a corporation, the number of shares held and, unless the 
corporation’s stock is publicly traded, the percentage of equity interest held; or  

2.  For an equity interest in a partnership, the percentage of equity interest held.  

(3)  Interests in business entities doing business with the city.  

a.  A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all interests in any business 
entity that does business with the city, other than interests reported under paragraph (2) of this 
subsection.  

b.  For each interest reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include:  

1.  The name and address of the principal office of the business entity;  

2.  The nature and amount of the interest held, including any conditions to and encumbrances 
in the interest;  

3.  With respect to any interest transferred, in whole or in part, at any time during the reporting 
period, a description of the interest transferred, the nature and amount of the consideration 
received in exchange for the interest, and, if known, the identity of the person to whom the 
interest was transferred; and  

4.  With respect to any interest acquired during the reporting period:  

i.  The date when, the manner in which, and the identity of the person from whom the 
interest was acquired; and  

ii.  The nature and the amount of the consideration given in exchange for the interest or, 
if acquired other than by purchase, the fair market value of the interest at the time 
acquired.  

(4)  Gifts.  

a.  A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of each gift in excess of twenty 
dollars ($20.00) in value or a series of gifts totaling one hundred dollars ($100.00) or more 
received during the reporting period from or on behalf of, directly or indirectly, any one (1) 
person who does business with or is regulated by the city or from an association, or any entity 
acting on behalf of an association that is engaged only in representing counties or municipal 
corporations. For each gift reported, the schedule shall include:.  

b.  For each gift reported, the schedule shall include:  

1.  A description of the nature and value of the gift; and  

2.  The identity of the person from whom, or on behalf of whom, directly or indirectly, the gift 
was received.  

(5)  Employment with or interests in entities doing business with the city.  

a.  A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all offices, directorships, and 
salaried employment by the individual or member of the immediate family of the individual held 
at any time during the reporting period with entities doing business with the city.  

b.  For each position reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include:  



1.  The name and address of the principal office of the business entity;  

2.  The title and nature of the office, directorship, or salaried employment held and the date it 
commenced; and  

3.  The name of each city agency with which the entity is involved.  

(6)  Indebtedness to entities doing business with or regulated by the individual’s city unit or department.  

a.  A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all liabilities, excluding retail 
credit accounts, to persons or entities doing business with or regulated by the individual's city 
unit or department owed at any time during the reporting period:  

1.  By the individual; or  

2.  By a member of the immediate family of the individual if the individual was involved in the 
transaction giving rise to the liability.  

b.  For each liability reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include:  

1.  The identity of the person to whom the liability was owed and the date the liability was 
incurred;  

2.  The amount of the liability owed as of the end of the reporting period;  

3.  The terms of payment of the liability and the extent to which the principal amount of the 
liability was increased or reduced during the year; and  

4.  The security given, if any, for the liability.  

(7)   Employment of immediate family members. A statement filed under this section shall include a 
schedule of the immediate family members of the individual employed by the city in any capacity at 
any time during the reporting period.  

(8)  Sources of earned income.  

a.  A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of the name and address of each 
place of employment and of each business entity of which the individual or a member of the 
individual's immediate family was a sole or partial owner and from which the individual or 
member of the individual's immediate family received earned income, at any time during the 
reporting period.  

b.  A minor child's employment or business ownership need not be disclosed if the agency that 
employs the individual does not regulate, exercise authority over, or contract with the place of 
employment or business entity of the minor child.  

c.  For a statement filed on or after January 1, 2019, if the individual's spouse is a lobbyist regulated 
by the city, the individual shall disclose the entity that has engaged the spouse for lobbying 
purposes.  

(9)  Relationship with University of Maryland Medical System, State or Local Government, or Quasi-
Governmental Entity. 

a.   An individual shall disclose the information specified in General Provisions Article §5-       
607(j)(1), Annotated Code of Maryland, for any financial or contractual relationship with: 

1.   The University of Maryland Medical System; 

 2. A governmental entity of the State or a local government in the State; or 

 3.  A quasi-governmental entity of the State or local government in the State. 

b.     For each financial or contractual relationship reported, the schedule shall include: 

1.  A description of the relationship; 

2.  The subject matter of the relationship; and 

3.  The consideration.  

(10)  Schedule of additional interests or information. A statement filed under this section may also include 
a schedule of additional interests or information that the individual making the statement wishes to 
disclose.  



(f)  Interests of individual making statement. For the purposes of subsections (e)(1), (2), and (3) of this 
section, the following interests are considered to be the interests of the individual making the statement:  

(1)  An interest held by a member of the individual's immediate family, if the interest was, at any time 
during the reporting period, directly or indirectly controlled by the individual.  

(2)   An interest held, at any time during the applicable period, by: 

a. A business entity in which the individual held a 10% or greater interest; 

b. A business entity described in item (i) of this subsection in which the business entity held a 25% 
or greater interest; 

c. A business entity described in item (ii) of this subsection in which the business entity held a 
50% or greater interest; and 

d. A business entity in which the individual directly or indirectly, though an interest in one or a 
combination of other business entities, holds a 10% or greater interest. 

(3)  An interest held by a trust or an estate in which, at any time during the reporting period:  

a.  The individual held a reversionary interest or was a beneficiary; or  

b.  If a revocable trust, the individual was a settlor.  

(g)  Compliance.  

(1)  The board shall review the financial disclosure statements submitted under this section for 
compliance with the provisions of this section and shall notify an individual submitting the statement 
of any omissions or deficiencies.  

(2)  The board may take appropriate enforcement action to ensure compliance with this section. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 

Sec. 19‐2. ‐ Definitions. 

Designated second home means: 

(1) If an individual owns one second home, the individual's second home; or 



(2) If an individual owns more than one second home, any one second home the individual identifies 
to the board as the individual's designated second home. 

Home address means the address of an individual's: 

(1) Principal home; and 

(2) Designated second home, if any. 

Interest means: 

(1) A legal or equitable economic interest, whether or not subject to an encumbrance or a condition, 
that is owned or held, in whole or in part, jointly or severally, directly or indirectly. 

(2) For purposes of this chapter, interest includes any interest held at any time during the reporting 
period. 

(3) Interest does not include: 

a. An interest held in the capacity of a personal agent, custodian, fiduciary, personal 
representative, or trustee, unless the holder has an equitable interest in the subject matter; 

b.      An interest in a time or demand deposit in a financial institution; 

c.      An interest in an insurance policy, endowment policy, or annuity contract under which an 
insurer promises to pay a fixed amount of money either in a lump sum or periodically for life 
or a specified period; 

d.      A common trust fund or a trust which forms part of a pension or profit sharing plan which 
has more than 25 participants and which has been determined by the Internal Revenue 
Service to be a qualified trust under the Internal Revenue Code; 

e.      A college savings plan under the Internal Revenue Code; or 

f.      A mutual fund or exchange-traded fund that is publicly traded on a national scale unless 
the mutual fund or exchange-traded fund is composed primarily of holdings of stocks and 
interests in a specific sector or area that is regulated by the individual's governmental unit. 

Principal home means the sole residential property that an individual occupies as the individual's 
primary residence, whether owned or rented by the individual. 

Qualified relative means a spouse, parent, child, brother, or sister. 

Quasi-governmental entity means an entity that is created by state statute, that performs a public 
function, and that is supported in whole or in part by the state but is managed privately. 

Second home means a residential property that: 

(1)      An individual occupies for some portion of the filing year; and 

(2)      Is not a rental property or a time share. 

Sec. 19‐3. ‐ Administrative appeals board. 
 

(a) There is an administrative appeals board (the "board") created under section 238 of the Charter that 
consists of five (5) members appointed by the mayor and city council. The board shall be the advisory 
body responsible for interpreting this chapter and advising persons subject to it as to its application. 

(b)      The board shall: 

 

(1) Devise, receive, and maintain all forms required by this chapter; 

(2) Develop procedures and policies for advisory opinion requests and provide published advisory 
opinions to persons subject to this chapter regarding the applicability of the provisions of this 
chapter to them; 

(3) Develop procedures and policies for the processing of complaints to make appropriate 
determinations regarding complaints filed by any person alleging violations of this chapter; and 

(4) Conduct a public information program regarding the purposes and application of this chapter. 



(c) The city solicitor shall advise the board. The city solicitor shall have the right to recuse himself from 
this obligation, in which event, the city administrator may retain the services of outside counsel. 

(d) The board shall certify to the state ethics commission on or before October 1 of each year that the city 
is in compliance with the requirements of General Provisions Article, Ann. Code of Md. tit. 5 subtit. 8, 
for elected local officials. 

(e) The board shall determine if changes to this chapter are required to be in compliance with the 
requirements of General Provisions Article, Ann. Code of Md. tit. 5 subtit. 8, and shall forward any 
recommended changes and amendments to the mayor and city council for enactment. 

(f)      Any official or other person subject to the provisions of this chapter may request the board for an 
advisory opinion concerning the application of this chapter. The board shall respond promptly to these 
requests, providing interpretations of this chapter based on the facts provided or reasonably available 
to it. Copies of these interpretations shall be made available to the public upon request. 

(g) Any person may file with the board a complaint alleging a violation of any of the provisions of this 
chapter. These complaints shall be written and under oath, and may be referred to the city solicitor, or 
other legal counsel if appropriate, for investigation and review. If, after receiving an investigative report, 
the board determines that there are insufficient facts upon which to base a determination of a violation, 
it may dismiss the complaint. If there is a reasonable basis for believing a violation has occurred, then 
the subject of the complaint shall be afforded an opportunity for a hearing conducted in accordance 
with the board's applicable rules of procedure for actions taken on the record. Any final determination 
resulting from the hearing shall include findings of fact and conclusions of law. Upon a finding of a 
violation, the board may take any enforcement action provided for in accordance with section 19-9. 

(h) The board may adopt other policies and procedures to assist in the implementation of the board's 
programs established in this chapter. 

Sec. 19‐4. ‐ Conflicts of interest. 
 

(a) Applicability. All city elected officials, officials appointed to city boards and commissions subject to this 
chapter, and employees are subject to this section. 

(b) Participation prohibitions. Except as permitted by board regulation or opinion, an official or employee 
may not participate in: 

(1) Except in the exercise of an administrative or ministerial duty that does not affect the disposition 
or decision of the matter, any matter in which, to the knowledge of the official or employee, the 
official or employee, or a qualified relative of the official or employee has an interest. 

(2) Except in the exercise of an administrative or ministerial duty that does not affect the disposition 
or decision with respect to the matter, any matter in which any of the following is a party: 

a. A business entity in which the official or employee has a direct financial interest of which the 
official or employee may reasonably be expected to know; 

b. A business entity for which the official, employee, or a qualified relative of the official or 
employee is an officer, director, trustee, partner, or employee; 

 

c. A business entity with which the official or employee or, to the knowledge of the official or 
employee, a qualified relative is negotiating employment or has any arrangement concerning 
prospective employment; 

d. If the contract reasonably could be expected to result in a conflict between the private 
interests of the official or employee and the official duties of the official or employee, a 
business entity that is a party to an existing contract with the official or employee, or which, 
to the knowledge of the official or employee, is a party to a contract with a qualified relative; 

e. An entity, doing business with the city, in which a direct financial interest is owned by another 
entity in which the official or employee has a direct financial interest, if the official or employee 
may be reasonably expected to know of both direct financial interests; or 

f.       A business entity that: 



1. The official or employee knows is a creditor or obligee of the official or employee or a 
qualified relative of the official or employee with respect to a thing of economic value; 
and 

2.      As a creditor or obligee, is in a position to directly and substantially affect the interest 
of the official or employee or a qualified relative of the official or employee. 

(3)   A person who is disqualified from participating under paragraphs (1) or (2) of this subsection shall 
disclose the nature and circumstances of the conflict and may participate or act if: 

 

a.   The disqualification leaves a body with less than a quorum capable of acting; 

b.   The disqualified official or employee is required by law to act; or 

c.   The disqualified official or employee is the only person authorized to act. 

(4) The prohibitions of paragraph (1) and (2) of this subsection do not apply if participation is allowed 
by regulation or opinion of the board. 

(5) A former regulated lobbyist who is or becomes subject to this chapter as an employee or official, 
other than an elected official or an appointed official, may not participate in a case, contract, or 
other specific matter as an employee or official, other than an elected official or appointed official, 
for one calendar year after the termination of the registration of the former regulated lobbyist if 
the former regulated lobbyist previously assisted or represented another party for compensation 
in the matter. 

(c)      Employment and financial interest restrictions. 

(1) Except as permitted by regulation of the board when the interest is disclosed or when the 
employment does not create a conflict of interest or appearance of conflict, an official or employee 
may not: 

a.      Be employed by or have a financial interest in any entity: 

1.      Subject to the authority of the official or employee or the city agency, board, 
commission with which the official or employee is affiliated; or 

2.      That is negotiating or has entered a contract with the agency, board, or commission 
with which the official or employee is affiliated; or . 

b.      Hold   any   other   employment   relationship   that   would   impair   the   impartiality   or 
independence of judgment of the official or employee. 

c.Hold any outside employment that impairs the employee’s ability to perform or availability for 
the performance of the employee’s job duties with the City, 

d. Wear the uniform of another employer or any other clothing with the name, logo or any other 
reference to the other employer. 

e. Solicit work for the employee’s outside employer. 

 

(2)      This prohibition does not apply to: 

a. An official or employee who is appointed to a regulatory or licensing authority pursuant to a 
statutory requirement that persons subject to the jurisdiction of the authority be represented 
in appointments to the authority; 

b.      Subject to other provisions of law, a member of a board or commission in regard to a 
financial interest or employment held at the time of appointment, provided the financial 
interest or employment is publicly disclosed to the appointing authority and the board; 

c.      An official or employee whose duties are ministerial, if the private employment or financial 
interest does not create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest, as 
permitted by and in accordance with regulations adopted by the board; or 

d.      Employment or financial interests allowed by regulation of the board if the employment 
does not create a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest or the financial 
interest is disclosed. 

(d)      Post-employment limitations and restrictions. 



(1) A former official or employee may not assist or represent any party other than the city for 
compensation in a case, contract, or other specific matter involving the city if that matter is one in 
which the former official or employee significantly participated as an official or employee. 

(2) A former elected official may not assist or represent another party for compensation in a matter 
that is the subject of legislative action for one calendar year after the elected official leaves office. 

(e) Contingent compensation. Except in a judicial or quasi-judicial proceeding, an official or employee may 
not assist or represent a party for contingent compensation in any matter before or involving the city. 

(f)      Use of prestige of office. 

(1) An official or employee may not intentionally use the prestige of office or public position for the 
private gain of that official or employee or the private gain of another, or to influence, except as 
part of the official duties of the official or employee or as a usual and customary constituent service 
without additional compensation, the award of a state or local contract to a specific person. 

(2) An official may not directly or indirectly initiate a solicitation for a person to retain the compensated 
services of a particular regulated lobbyist or lobbying firm. 

(3) This subsection does not prohibit the performance of usual and customary constituent services 
by an elected local official without additional compensation. 

(4) An official, other than an elected official, or employee may not use public resources or the title of 
the official or employee to solicit a contribution as that term is defined in the Election Law Article. 

(5) An elected official may not use public resources to solicit a contribution as that term is defined in 
the Election Law Article. 

(g) Solicitation and acceptance of gifts. 

(1) An official or employee may not solicit any gift. 

(2) An official or employee may not directly solicit or facilitate the solicitation of a gift, on behalf of 
another person, from an individual regulated lobbyist. 

(3) An official or employee may not knowingly accept a gift, directly or indirectly, from a person that 
the official or employee knows or has the reason to know: 

a. Is doing business with or seeking to do business with the city office, agency, board, or 
commission with which the official or employee is affiliated; 

b. Has financial interests that may be substantially and materially affected, in a manner 
distinguishable from the public generally, by the performance or nonperformance of the 
official duties of the official or employee; 

 

c.     Is engaged in an activity regulated or controlled by the official's or employee's governmental 
unit; or 

d.      Is a lobbyist with respect to matters within the jurisdiction of the official or employee.; or 

e. Is an association, or any entity acting on behalf of an association that is engaged only in 
representing counties or municipal corporations. 

(4) Paragraph (5) of this subsection does not apply to a gift: 

a.      That would tend to impair the impartiality and the independence of judgment of the official 
or employee receiving the gift; 

b.      Of significant value that would give the appearance of impairing the impartiality and 
independence of judgment of the official or employee; or 

c.      Of significant value that the recipient official or employee believes or has reason to believe 
is designed to impair the impartiality and independence of judgment of the official or 
employee. 

(5) Notwithstanding paragraph (3) of this subsection, an official or  employee may  accept the 
following: 

a.      Meals and beverages consumed in the presence of the donor or sponsoring entity; 

b.      Ceremonial gifts or awards that have insignificant monetary value; 



c.      Unsolicited gifts of nominal value that do not exceed twenty dollars ($20.00) in cost or 
trivial items of informational value; 

d.      Reasonable expenses for food, travel, lodging, and scheduled entertainment of the official 
or the employee at a meeting which is given in return for the participation of the official or 
employee in a panel or speaking engagement at the meeting; 

e.      Gifts of tickets or free admission extended to an elected local official to attend a charitable, 
cultural, or political event, if the purpose of this gift or admission is a courtesy or ceremony 
extended to the elected official's office; 

f.       A specific gift or class of gifts that the board exempts from the operation of this subsection 
upon a finding, in writing, that acceptance of the gift or class of gifts would not be detrimental 
to the impartial conduct of the business of the city and that the gift is purely personal and 
private in nature; 

g.      Gifts from a person related to the official or employee by blood or marriage, or any other 
individual who is a member of the household of the official or employee; or 

h.      Honoraria for speaking to or participating in a meeting, provided that the offering of the 
honorarium is in not related in any way to the official's or employee's official position. 

(h) Disclosure of confidential information. Other than in the discharge of official duties, an official, 
employee, or former official or employee may not disclose or use confidential information, that the 
official or employee acquired by reason of the official's or employee'sindividual’s public position and 
that is not available to the public, for the economic benefit of the official or employee or that of another 
person. 

(i) Participation in procurement. 

(1) An individual or a person that employs an individual who assists a city agency in the drafting of 
specifications, an invitation for bids, or a request for proposals for a procurement may not submit 
a bid or proposal for that procurement or assist or represent another person, directly or indirectly, 
who is submitting a bid or proposal for the procurement. 

(2) The board may establish exemptions from the requirements of this section for providing 
descriptive literature, sole source procurements, and written comments solicited by the 
procuring agency. 

 

(j)    Retaliation prohibited.  An official or employee may not retaliate against an individual for reporting or 
participating in an investigation of a potential violation of the local ethics law or ordinance. 

 

Sec. 19‐5. ‐ Financial disclosure—Local elected officials and candidates to be local elected officials. 
 

(a) Applicability/financial disclosure statements. 

(1) This section applies to all local elected officials and candidates to be local elected officials. 

(2) Except as provided in subsection (b) of this section, a local elected official or a candidate to be a 
local elected official shall file the financial disclosure statement required under this section: 

a.      On a form provided by the board; 

b.      Under oath or affirmation; and 

c.      With the board. 

(3)      Deadlines for filing statements. 

a.      An incumbent local elected official shall file a financial disclosure statement annually no 
later than April 30 of each year for the preceding calendar year. 

b.      An individual who is appointed to fill a vacancy in an office for which a financial disclosure 
statement is required and who has not already filed a financial disclosure statement shall file 
a statement for the preceding calendar year within thirty (30) days after appointment. 

c.     1.    An individual who, other than by reason of death, leaves an office for which a statement 
is required shall file a statement within sixty (60) days after leaving the office. 



2.      The statement shall cover: 

i.       The calendar year immediately preceding the year in which the individual left office, 
unless a statement covering that year has already been filed by the individual; and 

ii.      The portion of the current calendar year during which the individual held the 
office. 

(b)      Candidates to be local elected officials. 

(1) Except for an official who has filed a financial disclosure statement under another provision of this 
section for the reporting period, a candidate to be an elected local official shall file under a financial 
disclosure statement each year beginning with the year in which the certificate of candidacy is 
filed through the year of the election. 

(2)    A candidate to be an elected local official shall file a statement required under this section: 

a.      In the year the certificate of candidacy is filed, no later than the filing of the certificate of 
candidacy; 

b.      In the year of the election, on or before the earlier of April 30 or the last day for the 
withdrawal of candidacy; and 

c.      In all other years for which a statement is required, on or before April 30. 

(3) A candidate to be an elected official shall file the statements required under subsection (b) with 
the city clerk. 

(4) If a candidate fails to file a statement required to be filed by this section a candidate is overdue 
and not filed within eight (8) days after written notice of the failure to file is provided by the city 
clerk at least twenty (20) days before the last day for the withdrawal of candidacy, the candidate  
isshall be deemed to have withdrawn the candidacy. 

 

(5) The city clerk may not accept any certificate of candidacy unless a statement has been filed in 
proper form. 

(6) Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of a statement required under this section, the city clerk shall 
forward the statement to the board or the office designated by the board. 

(c)      Public record. 

(1) The city clerk shall maintain all financial disclosure statements filed under this section. 

(2) Financial disclosure statements shall be made available during normal office hours for 
examination and copying by the public subject to reasonable fees and administrative procedures 
established by the board or the city. 

(3) If an individual examines or copies a financial disclosure statement, the city clerk shall record: 

a.      The name and home address of the individual reviewing or copying the statement; and 

b.      The name of the person whose financial disclosure statement was examined or copied. 

(4) Upon request by the official or employee whose financial disclosure statement was examined or 
copied, the city clerk shall provide the official with a copy of the name and home address of the 
person who reviewed the official's financial disclosure statement. 

(5) For statements filed after January 1, 2019, the city clerk may not provide public access to an 
individual's home address that the individual has designated as the individual's home address. 

(6)The City Administrator shall not provide public access to information related to consideration 
received from: 

1. The University of Maryland Medical System; 

2. A governmental entity of the State or a local government in the State; or 3.     

A quasi-governmental entity of the State or local government in the State. 

(7)  An individual who is required to disclose the name of a business under this section shall disclose 
any other names that the business is trading as or doing business as. 



(d) Retention requirements. The city clerk shall retain financial disclosure statements for four (4) years 
from the date of receipt. 

(e) Contents of statement. 

(1) Interests in real property. 

a. A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all interests in real property 
wherever located. 

b.      For each interest in real property, the schedule shall include: 

1. The nature of the property and the location by street address, mailing address, or legal 
description of the property; 

2. The nature and extent of the interest held, including any conditions and encumbrances 
on the interest; 

3. The date when, the manner in which, and the identity of the person from whom the 
interest was acquired; 

4. The nature and amount of the consideration given in exchange for the interest or, if 
acquired other than by purchase, the fair market value of the interest at the time 
acquired; 

5.      If any interest was transferred, in whole or in part, at any time during the reporting 
period,  a  description  of  the  interest  transferred,  the  nature  and  amount  of  the 

 

consideration received for the interest, and the identity of the person to whom the 
interest was transferred; and 

6.    The identity of any other person with an interest in the property. 

(2)      Interests in corporations and partnerships. 

a. A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all interests in any 
corporation, partnership, limited liability partnership, or limited liability corporation, 
regardless of whether the corporation or partnership does business with the city. 

b.      For each interest reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include: 

1. The name and address of the principal office of the corporation, partnership, limited 
liability partnership, or limited liability corporation; 

2. The nature and amount of the interest held, including any conditions and encumbrances 
on the interest; 

3. With respect to any interest transferred, in whole or in part, at any time during the 
reporting period, a description of the interest transferred, the nature and amount of the 
consideration received for the interest, and, if known, the identity of the person to whom 
the interest was transferred; and 

4. With respect to any interest acquired during the reporting period: 

i.      The date when, the manner in which, and the identity of the person from whom 
the interest was acquired; and 

ii.      The nature and the amount of the consideration given in exchange for the 
interest or, if acquired other than by purchase, the fair market value of the interest 
at the time acquired. 

c.      An individual may satisfy the requirement to report the amount of the interest held under 
item b.2. of this paragraph by reporting, instead of a dollar amount: 

1. For an equity interest in a corporation, the number of shares held and, unless the  
corporation'scorporation’s stock is publicly traded, the percentage of equity interest 
held; or 

2.      For an equity interest in a partnership, the percentage of equity interest held. 

(3)      Interests in business entities doing business with the city. 



a.      A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all interests in any business 
entity that does business with the city, other than interests reported under paragraph (2) of 
this subsection. 

b.      For each interest reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include: 

1. The name and address of the principal office of the business entity; 

2. The nature and amount of the interest held, including any conditions to and 
encumbrances in the interest; 

3. With respect to any interest transferred, in whole or in part, at any time during the 
reporting period, a description of the interest transferred, the nature and amount of the 
consideration received in exchange for the interest, and, if known, the identity of the 
person to whom the interest was transferred; and 

4.      With respect to any interest acquired during the reporting period: 

i. The date when, the manner in which, and the identity of the person from whom the 
interest was acquired; and 

 

(4)       Gifts. 

 

ii.  The nature and the amount of the consideration given in exchange for the interest or, if acquired other 
than by purchase, the fair market value of the interest at the time acquired. 

 

a.      A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of each gift in excess of 
twenty dollars ($20.00) in value or a series of gifts totaling one hundred dollars ($100.00) or 
more received during the reporting period from or on behalf of, directly or indirectly, any one 
(1) person who does business with or is regulated by the city. or from an association, or any 
entity acting on behalf of an association that is engaged only in representing counties or 
municipal corporations. For each gift reported, the schedule shall include:. 

b.      For each gift reported, the schedule shall include: 

1.      A description of the nature and value of the gift; and 

2.      The identity of the person from whom, or on behalf of whom, directly or indirectly, the 
gift was received. 

(5)      Employment with or interests in entities doing business with the city. 

a.      A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all offices, directorships, 
and salaried employment by the individual or member of the immediate family of the 
individual held at any time during the reporting period with entities doing business with the 
city. 

b.      For each position reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include: 

1. The name and address of the principal office of the business entity; 

2. The title and nature of the office, directorship, or salaried employment held and the date 
it commenced; and 

3. The name of each city agency with which the entity is involved. 

(6) Indebtedness to entities doing business with or regulated by the individual’s city. unit or 
department. 

a.      A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of all liabilities, excluding 
retail credit accounts, to persons or entities doing business with the city or regulated by the 
individual's city unit or department owed at any time during the reporting period: 

1. By the individual; or 

2. By a member of the immediate family of the individual if the individual was involved in 
the transaction giving rise to the liability. 

b. For each liability reported under this paragraph, the schedule shall include: 



1. The identity of the person to whom the liability was owed and the date the liability was 
incurred; 

2. The amount of the liability owed as of the end of the reporting period; 

3. The terms of payment of the liability and the extent to which the principal amount of the 
liability was increased or reduced during the year; and 

4.      The security given, if any, for the liability. 

(7)    Schedule        Employment of immediate family members of the individual employed by the city. 
A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of the immediate family members of 
the individual employed by the city in any capacity at any time during the reporting period. 

(8) Sources of earned income. 

 

a.      A statement filed under this section shall include a schedule of the name and address of 
each place of employment and of each business entity of which the individual or a member 
of the individual's immediate family was a sole or partial owner and from which the individual 
or member of the individual's immediate family received earned income, at any time during 
the reporting period. 

b.      A minor child's employment or business ownership need not be disclosed if the agency 
that employs the individual does not regulate, exercise authority over, or contract with the 
place of employment or business entity of the minor child. 

c.      For a statement filed on or after January 1, 2019, if the individual's spouse is a lobbyist 
regulated by the city, the individual shall disclose the entity that has engaged the spouse for 
lobbying purposes. 

(9)(9)         Relationship with University of Maryland Medical System, State or Local Government, or 
Quasi-Governmental Entity. 

a. An individual shall disclose the information specified in General Provisions Article §5- 
607(j)(1), Annotated Code of Maryland, for any financial or contractual relationship with: 

 
 1.  The University of Maryland Medical System; 

  2.  A governmental entity of the State or a local government in the State; or 

  3.  A quasi-governmental entity of the State or local government in the State. 

b.    For each financial or contractual relationship reported, the schedule shall include: 

1.      A description of the relationship; 

2.      The subject matter of the relationship; and 

3.      The consideration.  

(10) Schedule of additional interests or information. A statement filed under this section may also 
include a schedule of additional interests or information that the individual making the statement 
wishes to disclose. 

(f) Interests of individual making statement. For the purposes of subsections (e)(1), (2), and (3) of this 
section, the following interests are considered to be the interests of the individual making the 
statement: 

(1) An interest held by a member of the individual's immediate family, if the interest was, at any time 
during the reporting period, directly or indirectly controlled by the individual. 

(2)            An interest held, at any time during the applicable period, by : 

a. A business entity in which the individual held a thirty (30) percent10% or greater interest at 
any time during the reporting period. ; 

b. A business entity described in item (i) of this subsection in which the business entity held a 
25% or greater interest; 

c.A business entity described in item (ii) of this subsection in which the business entity held a 
50% or greater interest; and 



d. A business entity in which the individual directly or indirectly, though an interest in one or a 
combination of other business entities, holds a 10% or greater interest. 

(3) An interest held by a trust or an estate in which, at any time during the reporting period: 

a.      The individual held a reversionary interest or was a beneficiary; or 

b.      If a revocable trust, the individual was a settlor. 

(g)      Compliance. 



(1) The board shall review the financial disclosure statements submitted under this section 
for compliance with the provisions of this section and shall notify an individual 
submitting the statement of any omissions or deficiencies. 

(2)          The board may take appropriate enforcement action to ensure compliance with this 
section. 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

2. Ordinance 3937 (2nd and 3rd readings) – an ordinance to approve the petition to amend the official 

zoning map zoning map to rezone property located at the intersection of Seton Drive and Pinecrest Drive 

from R-S (Suburban Residential) to B-L (Local Business)



ORDINANCE NO. 3937 

 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, 

ENTITLED “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE PETITION TO AMEND THE 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF CUMBERLAND (REFERRED TO IN 

SECTION 25-1 OF THE CODE OF THE CITY OF CUMBERLAND (1991 

EDITION)) TO REZONE PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 

OF THE INTERSECTION OF SETON DRIVE AND PINECREST DRIVE FROM 

THE R-S (SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL) ZONING CLASSIFICATION TO THE 

B-L (LOCAL BUSINESS) ZONING CLASSIFICATION.” 

 WHEREAS, the property which is the subject of this 

Ordinance (the “Property”), 6.02 acres, more or less, located 

at the southeast corner of Seton Drive and Pinecrest Drive, 

identified as Tax ID No. 06-010776, and more particularly 

described in the deed from Cumberland Real Estate Corporation 

to Mary Lane Real Estate Corporation dated December 30, 2009 

and recorded among the Land Records of Allegany County, 

Maryland Book 1680, Page 369, is owned by Mary Lane Real 

Estate Corporation. 

 WHEREAS, MVP Counseling Services (the “Applicant”) filed 

a Petition for Zoning Map Amendment (the “Petition”), 

requesting that the Property be rezoned from the Suburban 

Residential (R-S) Zoning District to the Local Business (B-

L) Zoning District.    



 2 

 WHEREAS, if the Petition is granted, the Applicant will 

purchase the Property and construct an office building 

designed to house a counseling practice. 

WHEREAS, the Cumberland Planning Commission Staff issued 

a Staff Report dated September 2, 2022 (the “Staff Report”), 

a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated by 

reference herein as Exhibit 1, recommending that the proposed 

zoning map amendment be approved. 

WHEREAS, among other things, the Staff Report includes 

Staff’s findings relative to the required considerations set 

forth in Section 4-204(b)(1) of the Land Use Article of the 

Annotated Code of Maryland, i.e., population change, the 

availability of public facilities, present and future 

transportation patterns, compatibility with existing and 

proposed development for the area, and the relationship of 

the proposed amendment to the local jurisdiction’s plan. 

WHEREAS, the Petition included analysis relative to the 

Change-Mistake Rule and why the proposed change in the zoning 

classification of the Property meets its requirements 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a hearing on 

September 26, 2022 for the purpose of considering the 

Petition, voting 2-0 to recommend that the Mayor and City 

Council grant the Zoning Map amendment requested therein.   



 3 

WHEREAS, as required by Section 25-439(e) of the City 

Code, the Planning Commission forwarded its recommendation to 

the Mayor and City Council for action. 

 WHEREAS, as required by Section 4-203(b) of the Land Use 

Article and Section 25-439(f) of the City Code, the Mayor and 

City Council published notice of the time and place of the 

public hearing before it on the matter of the rezoning which 

is the subject of this Ordinance together with a summary of 

the proposed rezoning in The Cumberland Times News, a 

newspaper of general circulation in Allegany County and the 

City of Cumberland, once each week for 2 successive weeks 

with the first notice being provided at least 14 days before 

the hearing.  The notices were published on October 19, 2022 

and October 26, 2022. 

 WHEREAS, in anticipation of the hearing, staff issued a 

Supplement to Staff Report dated October 19, 2022, a copy of 

which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein 

as Exhibit 2, for the purpose of confirming that they agree 

with the Applicant’s analysis relative to the Change-Mistake 

Rule and its conclusion that the proposed zoning change 

satisfies its requirements. 

WHEREAS, as required by Section 4-203(b) of the Land Use 

Article and Section 25-439(e) of the City Code, a public 

hearing on the proposed rezoning was held before the Mayor 



 4 

and City Council on November 15, 2022, at which public hearing 

all parties in interest and citizens of the City of Cumberland 

wishing to be heard were afforded the opportunity to have 

their say.   

 WHEREAS, having considered the Staff Report and the 

attachments thereto and the Supplement to Staff Report, the 

Mayor and City Council decided to adopt as its own findings 

those which are set forth in the Staff Report and the 

attachments thereto and the Supplement to Staff Report.   

 WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, the Mayor and City 

Council determined that they would accept the recommendation 

of the Planning Commission and that they would rezone the 

Property as requested in the Petition.   

 NOW, THEREFORE: 

 SECTION 1: BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF CUMBERLAND, that the relief sought in the Petition is 

granted.  The Property shall be rezoned from R-S to B-L is 

granted. The Official Zoning Map referred to in Section 25-1 

of the Code of the City of Cumberland (1991 Edition) be and 

is hereby amended to rezone the Property accordingly. 

SECTION 2: BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the said change 

shall be made on the Official Zoning Map immediately by 

inserting an entry on said Map stating:  



 5 

On December 6, 2022, by official action of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, the following 

changes were made on the Official Zoning Map: 

The 6.02, more or less, acre parcel of property 

located at the southeast corner of Seton Drive and 

Pinecrest Drive, identified as Tax ID No. 06-010776, 

and more particularly described in the deed from 

Cumberland Real Estate Corporation to Mary Lane Real 

Estate Corporation dated December 30, 2009 and 

recorded among the Land Records of Allegany County, 

Maryland Book 1680, Page 369, was zoned B-L (Local 

Business)  

SECTION 3: AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this 

Ordinance shall take effect on the eleventh day following its 

passage. 

 

 

 

 

 

PASSED this _____ day of December, 2022. 

 

 
      _____________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, 

Mayor 



 6 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

____________________________  

Allison Layton 

City Clerk 

  

 



CUMBERLAND PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

ZMA #22-000002: Seton Drive – Proposed Zoning Classification Change 

September 2, 2022 

 

Overview: 

On August 31, 2022, Andrea Emerick, on behalf of MVP Counseling Services, filed an application to 
rezone property at the southeast corner of Seton Drive and Pinecrest Drive (Tax Account ID # 01-
06010776) from the current R-S, Suburban Residential Zoning Designation to B-L, Local Business. A copy 
of the application and maps showing the location and boundaries of the property is attached to this 
report.  

The subject property lies immediately adjacent to property owned by UPMC Western Maryland and is 
currently zoned B-L, Local Business. The property also lies adjacent to property owned by Barbara 
Bingham and us currently zoned as R-U, Urban Residential. The property is currently owned by Mary 
Lane Real state Corporation, but it is the intent of the contract purchaser, in the event that the proposed 
zoning change is granted, to construct an office building designed to house the counseling facilities to be 
operated by the contract purchaser.   

 

Procedural Status: 

The applicant submitted the petition (ZMA 22-02) to rezone the property at Seton Drive & Pinecrest 
Drive to B-L, Local Business. A copy of that application form and all accompanying attachments is 
provided at the end of this report. The applicant was informed that the rezoning petition would be 
presented to the Planning Commission at a formal public hearing on Monday September 26, 2022 at 
4:30 PM. 

 

Staff Review: 

In support of the requested rezoning, per the requirements outlined in Section 25-144 (Zoning Chapter) 
of the Cumberland City Code, the applicant has submitted a map and description of the property, and 
written justification as to why the property should be rezoned and how it meets the criteria as outlined 
in the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

Under the provisions of the Land Use Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, the Mayor and City 
Council must make a series of specific findings in making its decision regarding the proposed zoning. A 
recommendation regarding these findings must be made by the Planning Commission. The specific 
findings are outlined in Section 4-204(b)(1) of the Land Use Article, and are as follows: 

EXHIBIT 1



1. Population Change: 

Staff notes the findings in the 2013 Comprehensive Plan that the population of the City of 
Cumberland has been in decline since the 1940’s. The Plan further notes that the city desires to 
reverse that trend and support the future growth and economic development of the city. The 
proposed zoning would provide for limited future economic expansion of the city’s commercial 
base, thereby expanding the City’s tax base, and promoting population growth that could be 
consistent with the recommendations of the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

2. The Availability of Public Facilities: 
 
The property in question is currently served by all city services. Change in Zoning will not affect 
the availability or adequacy of existing public services and facilities. 
 

3. Present & Future Transportation Patterns: 
 
Staff finds that the proposed map amendment/zoning change will not affect present or future 
transportation patterns in the area.  
 

4. Compatibility with Existing and Proposed Development for the Area: 
 
The area in question is currently zoned R-S, Suburban Residential. However, as mentioned 
previously in this report, there are adjacent parcels zoned B-L (Local Business). Staff finds that 
the rezoning of the parcel in question would provide continuity with the neighboring zoning of 
B-L (Local Business) and R-U (Urban Residential). 
 

5. Relationship of the Proposed Amendment to the Local Jurisdiction’s Plan: 

The proposed zoning change is consistent with the current and future uses contemplated by the 
2013 Comprehensive Plan for the area. Supporting Local Businesses is a key factor in supporting 
Economic Development in the region, as dictated in the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Planning Commission Action: 

[ X ] Recommend adoption of the requested Zoning Map Amendment for the affected property at 
Seton Drive & Pinecrest Drive to the Mayor and City Council in accordance with the following 
findings of fact and recommended conditions: 

The Planning Commission accepts the findings, recommendations, and conditions set__  

 forth in the Staff Report. ___________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

[    ] Recommend denial of requested Zoning Map Amendment for the affected property Seton Drive 
& Pinecrest Drive to the Mayor and City Council, based on the following findings: 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Motion by: Vic Rezendez_______________________________________________________ 

Seconded by: Ally Litten__________________________________________________________ 

Vote: 

 In favor of motion: ___2____  Opposed: _____0___  Abstained: _________ 

Number of voting members present: ___3_____ 

Signed: 

__________________________________________________  Date:   __________________ 
Chair, Cumberland Planning Commission 

 
_______________________________________________ Date:  __________________ 
Secretary, Cumberland Planning Commission 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix A 

Permit Applications & Documentation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 

 



 



 

 

 

 

SUPPLEMENT TO STAFF REPORT 

ZMA 22-02 

SETON DRIVE & PINECREST DRIVE 
  

EXHIBIT 2



To: Mayor and City Council 

From: Morgan Alban 

Re: Supplement to Staff Report for Zoning Map Amendment 22-02 – Seton Drive & Pinecrest Drive 

Date: 10/19/22 

 

 Staff prepared a Cumberland Planning Commission Staff Report (the “Report”) dated September 
2, 2022 in regard to the above-referenced matter.  The Report did not address the Change-Mistake Rule 
and how it applies to the Applicant’s proposed amendment of the City’s Official Zoning Map (the “Map”). 

 The Change-Mistake Rule is set forth in Section 25-440 of the City Code.  Subsections (b) and (c) 
set forth the criteria which must be considered in determining whether the Map should be amended, 
stating as follows:   

(b) Except for a comprehensive zoning map amendment, the application shall 
include either a finding that there has been a substantial change in the 
character of the neighborhood where the property is located since the last 
comprehensive zoning map amendment which supports the proposed 
amendment, or a finding that existing zoning classification of the property is a 
mistake. 

(c) If a finding is made that there has been a "change in the character of the 
neighborhood," in accordance with subsection (b), the area comprising that 
neighborhood shall be defined by the applicant. The planning commission may 
modify these neighborhood boundaries, in whole or in part. 

 The Application for the Map amendment (see Appendix A attached to the Report) includes 
analysis relative to how the Applicant’s proposed Map amendment satisfies the Change-Mistake Rule.  
That analysis is incorporated by reference herein.   The Applicant has defined the applicable neighborhood 
and shown how it has changed since the last comprehensive rezoning.  Staff accepts the Applicant’s 
analysis and agrees that the requirements of the Change-Mistake Rule have been satisfied. 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,144 - amending the City of Cumberland Municipal Debt Policy, originally adopted by Order 

25,001 and dated September 29, 2009, to establish comprehensive guidelines for the issuance and 

management of the City's debt



 

- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 

ORDER NO:   27,144                     DATE:       December 20. 2022        

 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 
THAT, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland hereby amend the City of Cumberland 

Municipal Debt Policy adopted by Order No. 25,001, dated September 29, 2009 and attached, to 

establish comprehensive guidelines for the issuance and management of the City's debt; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this policy be and is hereby effective with the date of 

the passage of this order. 

 

 

 

 

          __________________________ 

  Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor



City of Cumberland 

Municipal Debt Policy 

Dated as of December 20, 2022 
 

 

1. Introduction & Legal Authority 

 

The purpose of this Municipal Debt Policy (the "Policy") of the City of Cumberland ("City") 

is to establish comprehensive guidelines for the issuance and management of the City's debt. 

 

The City has authority to borrow money and issue debt payable from its taxes or other revenues 

for City-related purposes pursuant to Article 23A of the Annotated Code of Maryland, certain 

provisions of the Charter of the City of Cumberland, including, without limitations Sections 81 

and 82A, and certain public general laws of the State of Maryland. The City has the authority to 

undertake lease financing pursuant to Section 82B of the Charter. 

 

This Policy confirms the commitment of the Mayor and City Council, the City Administrator, 

other City management and staff, and advisors to: i) adhere to sound debt issuance and 

management practices, including the full and timely repayment of all borrowings; ii) achieve the 

lowest practical cost of borrowing commensurate with prudent level of risk; and iii) obtain 

unfettered access to the capital markets through preserving and enhancing of the quality of the 

City’s bonds and other debt. 

 

2. Municipal Debt Policy Scope 

 

This Policy shall govern the issuance and management of all of the debt and lease 

financings of the City, together with all obligations and facilities related to those debt and 

lease financings. While adherence to this Policy is required under normal circumstances, the 

City recognizes that changes in the capital markets, City programs, and other unforeseen 

circumstances may produce situations that are not covered by this Policy, or require 

modification in order to achieve the City's Policy goals. Thus, the City may, upon 

recommendation of the Mayor or City Administrator, approve financing and other related 

agreements with terms and/or provisions that deviate from this Policy. The failure of the 

City to comply with any provision of this Policy shall not affect the validity of any debt that 

is otherwise duly authorized and executed. 

 

3. Municipal Debt Policy Objectives 

 

The objectives of this Policy are as follows: 

 

a. Maintain unfettered, cost-effective access to the capital markets through prudent 

debt management policies. 

b. Provide financial support for the City's strategic and capital plan objectives through 

debt and equipment lease financing. 

c. Provide guidelines for the overall management of the City's debt. 

d. Achieve the highest practical credit ratings and the lowest possible costs. 



4. Compliance with Law and City Agreements 

 

All City debt and lease financing shall be issued in accordance with the City Charter, and all 

applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations. 

 

5. Appropriate Use of Debt 

 

City debt shall only be used for the following purposes: i) to finance capital improvement 

projects undertaken by the City including the construction, major repair, or enhancement of 

City facilities; ii) to finance the acquisition of capital assets; iii) to finance the purchase of 

capital equipment; iv) to refinance previously issued City debt or long-term obligations; v) 

in anticipation of receipt of taxes; and vi) to finance other large and extraordinary costs as 

determined by the City such as legal judgments, settlements or pension or other obligations. 

Long term debt shall never be used to fund operating costs, except for appropriate de 

minimis working capital.  

 

6. Debt Approval Procedures 

 

All proposed debt issuances shall be submitted to the Mayor and City Council for its approval 

and authorization. The Mayor and City Council; by majority vote shall approve any ordinance 

or resolution authorizing each such issuance. 

 

7. Types of Borrowing 

 

The following categories of debt refer to the form of revenue source, type of debt (new money 

vs. refunding), lien, and mode (fixed rate vs. variable rate). 

 

a. General Obligation Bonds 

City General Obligation Bonds are long term debt obligations that are repayable 

from City property taxes and, if applicable, identified revenues, grants or other third-

party funds and are secured by the full faith and credit and taxing power of the City.  

 

b. Revenue Bonds 

Revenue Bonds are long term debt obligations used to finance a specific City project, 

facility or system. A distinguishing characteristic of revenue bonds is that they are 

repayable primarily from revenues generated by the facility, standalone project or 

system to be financed by the bonds, rather than from the City's General Fund. Neither the 

credit nor the taxing power of the City, the State of Maryland or any political subdivision 

of the State shall be pledged or made available to pay or secure revenue bonds of the 

City, unless specifically authorized by an Order of the Mayor and City Council. 

 

c. Lease Financing 

 

Lease obligations may be an appropriate means of financing capital equipment and, 

in certain instances, real property. A financing lease is a fixed-term, non-cancelable 

lease that is similar to a loan and is used for the acquisition of capital assets such as 



equipment or real property. Under a financing lease, the title (or ownership) of the 

assets purchased either remains with the lessor during the lease period or is vested in 

the lessee with a right of reversion to the lessor. At the end of the lease, title to the 

assets financed transfers to the lessee. 

 

In a financing lease, the lessee enjoys the benefits and bears the burdens of ownership of 

the leased property and is, consequently, treated as the owner of that property for federal 

tax purposes. The lease payments represent the lessee’s installment purchase of the 

leased property over time. Under a financing lease, the lessee will acquire unencumbered 

title to the leased property at the end of the lease term upon payment of nominal 

consideration. Any purchase option that may be exercised during the lease term will 

typically require payment of the unpaid principal balance of the amount originally 

advanced for the leased property plus any accrued interest and any premium. 

 

The City may enter into a financing lease and/or implement a master lease program 

to finance the acquisition of capital equipment. These types of obligations can be 

considered for equipment and assets as an alternative to other debt financing. 

Equipment with a useful life of 3 years or greater may be lease financed. Lease 

finance contracts or programs will be at least $10,000 in amount, and the term of 

lease may not exceed the average useful life of the equipment being lease financed.  

 

d. New Money Bonds 

 

New money bonds are bonds issued to finance the cost of capital improvement 

projects, for real property or any other purpose outlined in Section 5 of this Policy. 

The issuance of new money bonds will generally result in an increase in the amount 

of City debt outstanding, in contrast to refunding bonds, which refinance previously 

issued debt. 

 

e. Refunding Bonds 

 

Refunding bonds are bonds issued to refinance (or refund) previously issued and 

currently outstanding debt. The City may issue refunding bonds to refinance the 

principal of and interest on outstanding bonds or other debt of the City in order to (i) 

achieve debt service savings; (ii) restructure scheduled debt service; (iii) convert 

from or to a variable or fixed interest rate structure; (iv) change or modify the source 

or sources of payment and security for the refunded debt; or (v) modify covenants 

otherwise binding upon the City. 

 

f. Long Term Debt 

 

Long term debt is defined as bonds or other debt with a final maturity of one (1) year or 

more. The City may issue debt with longer-term maturities to amortize City capital or 

other costs over a period commensurate with the expected life, use or benefit provided by 

the projects, programs or facilities financed from such bonds, subject to any applicable 

statutory or tax code limitations. 



g. Short Term Debt 

 

For purposes of this Policy, short-term debt is defined as any debt with a final 

maturity of less than one (1) year. The City may issue debt with shorter-term 

maturities, including grant and revenue anticipation notes, to provide interim 

financing for capital projects in anticipation of the issuance of longer-term bond or 

other debt and/or the receipt of grant or other third-party moneys. 

 

h. Fixed Rate Borrowings 

 

Fixed rate borrowings are debt issuances that pay a fixed rate of interest. Fixed rate 

borrowing may utilize one or more series of bonds with differing maturities, all of 

which pay a fixed rate of interest. Fixed-rate debt shall be the primary type of debt 

issued by the City to assure future costs and to insulate the City from interest rate 

risk. 

 

i. Variable Rate Borrowings 

 

Variable rate borrowings are debt issuances whose interest rate vary from day to 

day, week to week, or some other period, based on pre-determined market indices 

and conditions. Variable rate bonds are typically issued using a letter of credit, 

which assures the liquidity needed for such debt, and also typically enhances the 

credit quality of the debt. When considering the issuance of variable rate debt, the 

City shall take into account current and projected interest rate environments and 

whether variable rate debt is a common mode of financing for the type of 

borrowing contemplated. 

 

j. Additional Types of_ Borrowings 

 

Special taxing district and special assessment bonds may be issued by creating a 

district in which, to the extent required by applicable statutes, the land-owners and 

others within the district agree to tax themselves, through ad valorem or special taxes 

at a higher rate in order to repay debt issued to finance capital improvements. The 

City may issue such bonds as appropriate in support of its development and capital 

improvement programs. The City may also issue tax increment financing bonds 

(which are secured by incremental ad valorem real property taxes) to finance 

infrastructure and other public improvements. 

 

k. Tax Anticipation Notes 

 

A Tax Anticipation Note is a short-term note issued with the intent to repay once tax 

payments are collected. Tax anticipation notes shall be utilized only when absolutely 

necessary to meet the cash flow requirements of the City and shall not be used for 

capital projects. 

 

 



8. Debt Affordability Objectives and Policy Limits 

 

It is the policy of the City to meet the objectives listed below through a debt affordability 

analysis to ensure that the City continues to provide essential operational services while 

planning for replacement, rehabilitation, repair and expansion of its capital investments. 

 

a. The City will seek to minimize the level of debt outstanding consistent with the debt 

service that can be supported by its current operations. 

 

b. Enterprise fund related debt service will be supported by the revenues of the 

enterprise operations itself, except to the extent a particular lender such as the 

Maryland Water Quality Financing Administration or United States Department of 

Agriculture requires a backup general obligation pledge of the City or pledge of 

additional system revenues for a particular financing. 

 

The debt affordability analysis includes: 

1. A five-year forecast of capital equipment and projects 

2. A five-year forecast of new debt issuances  

3. Five years actual and six years projected debt: 

a.  Per capita 

b.  As a percentage of personal income 

c. As a percentage of real property assessed value 

4. Five years actual and six years projected market value per capita 

5. Annual General Fund debt service as a percentage of General Fund expenditures 

6. Analysis of proprietary funds debt service for the most recently completed fiscal year, 

current fiscal year, and five-year forecast 

7. Summary and recommendations 

 

9. Derivatives and Interest Rate Swaps 

 

The City will not utilize derivatives or interest swaps unless such action is specifically approved 

by an Order of the Mayor and City Council. 

 

10. Professional Services 

 

The City may retain professional services providers as necessary or desirable in connection 

with (i) the structuring, issuance and sale of its bonded debt; (ii} monitoring of and advice 

regarding its outstanding bonds; and (iii) the negotiation, execution and monitoring of 

related agreements, including without limitation bond insurance, credit facilities, investment 

agreements; and (iv) other similar or related matters. Professional service providers may 

include financial advisors, bond counsel, disclosure counsel, consultants, bond trustees and 

Federal arbitrage rebate services providers, and may include, as appropriate, underwriters, 

feasibility consultants, remarketing agents, auction agents, broker/dealers, escrow agents, 

verification agents and other similar parties. 

 

The City shall require that its financial advisors, bond and disclosure counsel, and City 



consultants be free of any conflicts of interest, or that any necessary or appropriate waivers 

or consents are obtained. 

 

11. Periodic Review 

 

The City Administrator shall review this Policy on a periodic basis, and recommend any 

changes to the Mayor and City Council for consideration. 



Council Agenda Summary 
Meeting Date: December 20, 2022 

Key Staff Contact: Ken Tressler and Mark Gandolfi 

Item Title: 

City of Cumberland – Debt Policy Update 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc. for Council: 

A revision to certain sections of the City’s debt policy to update and expand upon procedures, 

requirements, and accountability for the issuance and management of the City's debt.  The main 

items of this update include: 

• Removed references to capital lease per GASB 87 changes.   

• Identified and included affordability metrics within debt policy per a 2021 S&P 

rating recommendation. 

 

 



 

- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 

ORDER NO:                        DATE:                   

 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 
THAT, the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland hereby amend the City of Cumberland 

Municipal Debt Policy adopted by Order No. 25,001, as attached, to establish comprehensive 

guidelines for the issuance and management of the City's debt; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, That this policy be and is hereby effective with the date of 

the passage of this order. 

 

 

 

 

          __________________________ 

  Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor



City of Cumberland 

Municipal Debt Policy 

Dated as of December 20, 2022 

 
 

 

1. Introduction & Legal Authority 

 

The purpose of this Municipal Debt Policy (the "Policy") of the City of Cumberland ("City") 

is to establish comprehensive guidelines for the issuance and management of the City's  

debt. 

 

The City has authority to borrow money and issue debt payable from its taxes or  other 

revenues for City-related purposes pursuant to Article 23A of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland, certain provisions of the Charter of the City of Cumberland, including, without 

limitations Sections 81 and 82A, and certain public general laws of the State of Maryland. 

The City has the authority to undertake capital lease financing pursuant to Section 82B of the 

Charter. 

 

This Policy confirms the commitment of the Mayor and City Council, the City 

Administrator, other City management and staff, and advisors to: i) adhere to sound debt 

issuance and management practices, including the full and timely repayment of all 

borrowings; ii) achieve the lowest practical cost of borrowing commensurate with prudent 

level of risk; and iii) obtain unfettered access to the capital markets through preserving and 

enhancing of the quality of the City’s bonds and other debt. 

 

2. Municipal Debt Policy Scope 

 

This Policy shall govern the issuance and management of all of the debt and capital lease 

financings of the City funded from the capital markets, together with all obligations and 

facilities related to those debt and capital lease financings. While adherence to this Policy is 

required under normal circumstances, the City recognizes that changes in the capital 

markets, City programs, and other unforeseen circumstances may produce situations that are 

not covered by this Policy, or require modification in order to achieve the City's Policy 

goals. Thus, the City may, upon recommendation of the Mayor or City Administrator, 

approve financing and other related agreements with terms and/or provisions that deviate 

from this Policy. The failure of the City to comply with any provision of this Policy shall 

not affect the validity of any debt that is otherwise duly authorized and executed. 

 

3. Municipal Debt Policy Objectives 

 

The objectives of this Policy are as follows: 

 

a. Maintain unfettered, cost-effective access to the capital markets through prudent 

debt management policies. 

b. Provide financial support for the City's strategic and capital plan objectives through 



debt and equipment lease financing. 

c. Provide guidelines for the overall management of the City's debt. 

d. Achieve the highest practical credit ratings and the lowest possible costs. 

 

4. Compliance with Law and City Agreements 

 

All City debt and capital lease financing shall be issued in accordance with the City Charter, 

and all applicable Federal and State laws, rules and regulations. 

 

5. Appropriate Use of Debt 

 

City debt shall only be used for the following purposes: i) to finance capital improvement 

projects undertaken by the City including the construction, major repair, or enhancement of 

City facilities; ii) to finance the acquisition of capital assets; iii) to finance the purchase of 

capital equipment; iv) to refinance previously issued City debt or long-term obligations; v) 

in anticipation of receipt of taxes; and vi) to finance other large and extraordinary costs as 

determined by the City such as legal judgments, settlements or pension or other obligations.  

 

Long term debt shall never be used to fund operating costs, except for appropriate de 

minimis working capital. The City shall use proceeds from governmental purpose bonds for 

public use projects, as approved by the Mayor and City Council. 

 

6. Debt Approval Procedures 

 

All proposed debt issuances will shall be submitted to the Mayor and City Council for its 

approval and authorization. The Mayor and City Council; by majority vote shall approve any 

ordinance or resolution authorizing each such issuance. 

 

7. Types of Borrowing 

 

The following categories of debt refer to the form of revenue source, type of debt (new money 

vs. refunding), lien, and mode (fixed rate vs. variable rate). 

 

a. General Obligation Bonds 

City General Obligation Bonds are long term debt obligations that are repayable 

from City property taxes and, if applicable, identified revenues, grants or other third-

party funds and are secured by the full faith and credit and taxing power of the City. 

The City may issue City General Obligation Bonds to fund capital improvement 

projects, purchases of large-scale capital equipment, and other costs of the City. 

 

b. Revenue Bonds 

Special Revenue Bonds are long term debt obligations used to finance a specific City 

project, facility or system. A distinguishing characteristic of revenue bonds is that 

they are repayable solely primarily from revenues generated by the facility, stand 

alonestandalone project or system to be financed by the bonds, rather than from the 

City's General Fund. Neither the credit nor the taxing power of the City, the State of 

Commented [CC1]: First paragraph already defines 

use. 

Commented [CC2]: No. 5 defines acceptable uses. 



Maryland or any political subdivision of the State shall be pledged or made available to 

pay or secure revenue bonds of the City, unless specifically authorized by an Order of the 

Mayor and City Council. 

 

c. Lease Financing 

 

Lease obligations are may be an appropriate means of financing capital equipment 

and, in certain instances, real property. A capital financing lease is a fixed-term, non-

cancelable lease that is similar to a loan and is used for the acquisition of capital 

assets such as equipment or real property. Under a capital financing lease, the title 

(or ownership) of the assets purchased either remains with the lessor during the lease 

period or is vested in the lessee with a right of reversion to the lessor. At the end of 

the lease, title to the assets financed transfers to the lessee. 

 

In a financing lease, the lessee enjoys the benefits and bears the burdens of ownership of 

the leased property and is, consequently, treated as the owner of that property for federal 

tax purposes. The lease payments represent the lessee’s installment purchase of the 

leased property over time. Under a financing lease, the lessee will acquire unencumbered 

title to the leased property at the end of the lease term upon payment of nominal 

consideration. Any purchase option that may be exercised during the lease term will 

typically require payment of the unpaid principal balance of the amount originally 

advanced for the leased property plus any accrued interest and any premium. 

 

The City may enter into a capital financing lease and/or implement a master capital 

lease program to finance the acquisition of capital equipment. These types of 

obligations can be considered for equipment and assets as an alternative to other debt 

financing such as revenue bonds. Only high priority eEquipment with a useful life of 

3 years or greater will may be capital lease financed. Lease finance contracts or 

programs will be at least $100,000 in sizeamount, and the term of lease will may not 

exceed the average useful life of the equipment being lease financed. Equipment 

with a useful life of less than 3 years will be funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. Short 

term operating leases for equipment are not covered by this policy. 

 

d. New Money Bonds 

 

New money bonds are bonds issued to finance the cost of capital improvement 

projects, for real property or any other purpose outlined in Section V 5 of this Policy. 

The issuance of new money bonds will generally result in an increase in the amount 

of City debt outstanding, in contrast to refunding bonds, which simply refinance 

previously issued debt. 

 

e. Refunding Bonds 

 

Refunding bonds are bonds issued to refinance (or refund) previously issued and 

currently outstanding debt. The City may issue refunding bonds to refinance the 

principal of and interest on outstanding bonds or other debt of the City in order to (i) 



achieve debt service savings; (ii) restructure scheduled debt service; (iii) convert 

from or to a variable or fixed interest rate structure; (iv) change or modify the source 

or sources of payment and security for the refunded debt; or (v) modify covenants 

otherwise binding upon the City. 

 

f. Long Term Debt 

 

For purposes of this Policy, lLong term debt is defined as bonds or other debt with a final 

maturity of ten one (10) years or more. The City may issue debt with longer-term 

maturities to amortize City capital or other costs over a period commensurate with the 

expected life, use or benefit provided by the projects, programs or facilities financed 

from such bonds, subject to any applicable statutory or tax code limitations. 

 

g. Short Term Debt 

 

For purposes of this Policy, short-term debt is defined as any debt with a final 

maturity of less than three one (31) years. The City may issue debt with shorter-term 

maturities, including grant and revenue anticipation notes, to provide interim 

financing for capital projects in anticipation of the issuance of longer-term bond or 

other debt and/or the receipt of grant or other third-party moneys. 

 

h. Fixed Rate Borrowings 

 

Fixed rate borrowings are debt issuances that pay a fixed rate of interest. Fixed rate 

borrowing may utilize one or more series of bonds with differing maturities, all of 

which pay a fixed rate of interest. Fixed-rate debt shall be the primary type of debt 

issued by the City to assure future costs and to insulate the City from interest rate 

risk. 

 

i. Variable Rate Borrowings 

 

Variable rate borrowings are debt issuances whose interest rate vary from day to 

day, week to week, or some other period, based on pre-determined market indices 

and conditions. Variable rate bonds are typically issued using a letter of credit, 

which assures the liquidity needed for such debt, and also typically enhances the 

credit quality of the debt. When considering the issuance of variable rate debt, the 

City shall take into account current and projected interest rate environments and 

whether variable rate debt is a common mode of financing for the type of 

borrowing contemplated. 

 

j. Additional Types of_ Borrowings 

 

Special taxing district and special assessment bonds may be issued by creating a 

district in which, to the extent required by applicable statutes, the land-owners and 

others within the district agree to tax themselves, through ad valorem or special taxes 

at a higher rate in order to repay debt issued to finance capital improvements. The 



City may issue such bonds as appropriate in support of its development and capital 

improvement programs. The City may also issue tax increment financing bonds 

(which are secured by incremental ad valorem real property taxes) to finance 

infrastructure and other public improvements. 

 

k. Tax Anticipation Notes 

 

A Tax Anticipation Note is a short-term note issued with the intent to repay once tax 

payments are collectedTax anticipation notes are notes issued in receipt of 

anticipated taxes. Tax anticipation notes shall be utilized only when absolutely 

necessary to meet the cash flow requirements of the City and shall not be used for 

capital projects. 

 

8. Debt Affordability Objectives and Policy Limits 

 

It is the policy of the City to meet the objectives listed below through a debt affordability 

analysis. These limits will to ensure that the City continues to provide essential operational 

services while planning for replacement, rehabilitation, repair and expansion of its capital 

investments. 

 

a. The City will seek to minimize the level of debt outstanding consistent with the debt 

service that can be supported by its current operations. 

 

b. Enterprise fund related debt service will be supported by the revenues of the 

enterprise operations itself, except to the extent a particular lender such as the 

Maryland Water Quality Financing Administration or United States Department of 

Agriculture requires a backup general obligation pledge of the City or pledge of 

additional system revenues for a particular financing. 

 

The debt affordability analysis includes: 

1. A five-year forecast of capital equipment and projects 

2. A five-year forecast of new debt issuances  

3. Five years actual and six years projected debt: 

a.  Per capita 

b.  As a percentage of personal income 

c. As a percentage of real property assessed value 

4. Five years actual and six years projected market value per capita 

5. Annual General Fund debt service as a percentage of General Fund expenditures 

6. Analysis of proprietary funds debt service for the most recently completed fiscal year, 

current fiscal year, and five-year forecast 

7. Summary and recommendations 

 

9. Derivatives and Interest Rate Swaps 

 

The City will not utilize derivatives or interest swaps unless such action is specifically approved 

by an Order of the Mayor and City Council. 

Formatted: Line spacing:  single, Numbered +

Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.26" + Indent at: 

0.51"

Formatted: Line spacing:  single, Numbered +

Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +

Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.26" + Indent at: 

0.51"



 

10. Professional Services 

 

The City may retain professional services providers as necessary or desirable in connection 

with (i) the structuring, issuance and sale of its bonded debt; (ii} monitoring of and advice 

regarding its outstanding bonds; and (iii) the negotiation, execution and monitoring of 

related agreements, including without limitation bond insurance, credit facilities, investment 

agreements; and (iv) other similar or related matters. Professional service providers may 

include financial advisors, bond counsel, disclosure counsel, City consultants, bond trustees 

and Federal arbitrage rebate services providers, and may include, as appropriate, 

underwriters, feasibility consultants, remarketing agents, auction agents, broker/dealers, 

escrow agents, verification agents and other similar parties. 

 

The City shall require that its financial advisors, bond and disclosure counsel, and City 

consultants be free of any conflicts of interest, or that any necessary or appropriate waivers 

or consents are obtained. 

 

11. Periodic Review 

 

The City Administrator shall review this Policy on a periodic basis, and recommend any 

changes to the Mayor and City Council for consideration. 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,145 - accepting the retirement of John C. Ternent, Chief of Police effective January 1, 2023



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     27,145                DATE:      December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland: 

THAT, the retirement of John C. Ternent from the position of Chief of Police be 

accepted, with the effective date of January 1, 2023. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 





File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,146 -appointing Captain James D. Burt as acting Police Chief, effective January 1, 2023



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     27,146                 DATE:      December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland: 

THAT, Captain James D. Burt be and is hereby appointed Acting Police Chief 

effective January 1, 2023. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,147 - authorizing $25,000 in initial start up funds for the Carver Center for the purposes of 

utilities and insurance



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     27,147                 DATE:      December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland: 

THAT, the authorization of initial start-up funds to the Carver Center Board in an 

amount not to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and No Cents ($25,000) for the 

purpose of utility reconnection costs and Directors and Officers Insurance be and is 

hereby approved. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,148 - authorizing the sole source proposal from Carl Belt, Inc. for the emergency repair work 

on the 18" Sewer line in Mechanic Street in the not to exceed amount of $157,718.10



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.     27,148                 DATE:      December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland: 

THAT, the sole source proposal from Carl Belt, Inc., 11521 Milnor Avenue, 

Cumberland, MD 21502, for the emergency repair work on the 18” sewer line in Mechanic 

Street be and is hereby accepted in the amount not to exceed One Hundred Fifty Seven 

Thousand Seven Hundred Eighteen Dollars and Ten Cents ($157,718.10); and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this award shall be made on a sole source basis 

due to the emergency nature of the repairs, as provided in Section 2-171(c) of the City 

Code. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 
 

 

 

 

 

Budget Code:  003.320.40800 



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: 12/20/2022 

Key Staff Contact: Robert Smith, PE 

 

Item Title: 

Mechanic Street 18” Sewer Line Emergency Repair 

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc for Council: 

The City of Cumberland had to perform emergency repair work on the 18” sewer line in Mechanic 
Street. This scope of work was outside of the capabilities of our sewer department due to equipment 
limitations, therefore, the City sole sourced this work to Carl Belt, Inc. to perform due to the emergency 
nature of this sewer collapse. Work included the repair of the 18” sewer line and the paving of the road 
in which the work was performed. The work totaled $157,718.10.  

This will be funded with City Sewer Funds. 

 

Amount of Award: $157,718.10 

Budget number: 003.320.40800 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: City Funds 

















File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,149 - authorizing the purchase of a new Ford F-600 dump truck with plow and spreader for the

Water Department from Keystone Ford for a price not to exceed $116,485



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,149                   DATE:    December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Sole Source purchase of a 2023 Ford F-600 Dump Truck with Plow and 

Spreader from Keystone Ford, 301 Walker Road, Chambersburg, PA 17201, with an upfit by 

Stephenson Equipment, in the not-to-exceed cost of One Hundred Sixteen Thousand Four 

Hundred Eighty-Five Dollars and No Cents ($116,485), be and is hereby approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, this special pricing is in accordance with City 

Code Section 2-171(c), which pertains to purchasing cooperatives and state and local 

government contracts (piggyback contracts). 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Budget: 

Water Department 002.220.64000  

  











File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,150 - authorizing the purchase of a new Ford F-550 service body truck for the Water 

Department from Keystone Ford for an amount not to exceed $110,435



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,150                   DATE:    December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Sole Source purchase of a 2023 Ford F-550 Service Body Truck from 

Keystone Ford, 301 Walker Road, Chambersburg, PA 17201, with an upfit by Stephenson 

Equipment, in the not-to-exceed cost of One Hundred Ten Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-

Five Dollars and No Cents ($110,435), be and is hereby approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, this special pricing is in accordance with City 

Code Section 2-171(c), which pertains to purchasing cooperatives and state and local 

government contracts (piggyback contracts). 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Budget: 

Water Department 002.220.64000  

  











File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,151 - authorizing the purchase of a new Ford F-250 regular cab pickup truck with plow for the 

Flood Control Department from Keystone Ford for an amount not to exceed $55,160



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,151                   DATE:    December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Sole Source purchase of a 2023 Ford F-250 Regular Cab Pickup Truck with 

Plow from Keystone Ford, 301 Walker Road, Chambersburg, PA 17201, in the not-to-exceed 

cost of Fifty-Five Thousand One Hundred Sixty Dollars and No Cents ($55,160), be and is 

hereby approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, this special pricing is in accordance with City 

Code Section 2-171(c), which pertains to purchasing cooperatives and state and local 

government contracts (piggyback contracts). 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Budget: 

Flood Department 003.325.64000  











File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,152 - authorizing the purchase of a new F-350 service body truck for the Street Department 

from Keystone Ford and J & J Equipment for an amount not to exceed $64,491



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,152                   DATE:    December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, the Sole Source purchase of a 2023 Ford F-350 Service Body Truck from 

Keystone Ford, 301 Walker Road, Chambersburg, PA 17201, with an upfit by J&J Equipment, 

in the not-to-exceed cost of Sixty Four Thousand Four Hundred Ninety-One Dollars and No 

Cents ($64,491), be and is hereby approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, this special pricing is in accordance with City 

Code Section 2-171(c), which pertains to purchasing cooperatives and state and local 

government contracts (piggyback contracts). 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Budget: 

Street Department 001.056.64000  

  













File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,153, authorizing the transfer of 309 S. Cedar Street from Richard A. Pravlik to Kevin Knisely



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 

 

ORDER NO.  27,153                  DATE:    December 20, 2022 

 

 WHEREAS, in accordance with the terms of Ordinance No. 3911, passed May 3, 2022, 

the City transferred the property at 309 S. Cedar Street, Cumberland, MD 21502 (Tax ID #04-

015460) (“the Property”) to Richard A. Pravlik, subject to the covenants and agreements set forth 

in the deed effecting the transfer.  The said deed was recorded among the Land Records for 

Allegany County, Maryland in Book 2818, Page 319. 

 WHEREAS, the deed provides that Mr. Pravlik may not convey the Property to a third 

property unless he completed certain tasks to clean up the Property and repair the improvements 

thereon. 

 WHEREAS, the deed contained other provisions that were particular to Mr. Pravlik. 

 WHEREAS, Mr. Pravlik now intends to transfer the Property to Kevin Knisely, but he 

has not completed the repair and cleanup of the Property. 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of this Order is for the City to consent to the transfer of the 

Property to Kevin Knisely, subject to the terms and conditions set forth hereinafter. 

 NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, BY THE MAYOR AND CITY 

COUNCIL OF CUMBERLAND, MARYLAND that, the City will consent to the transfer of the 

Property from Richard A. Pravlik to Kevin Knisely, and the Mayor is hereby authorized to 

execute such documents as may be necessary or expedient to note that consent.   

 BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that the aforesaid transfer shall be subject to the 

following terms and conditions: 



1. Mr. Pravlik shall pay the attorney’s fees the City incurred relative to transfer 

of the Property to Mr. Knisely.  

2. The deed effecting the transfer of the Property shall include provisions making 

the City Administrator Mr. Knisely’s attorney-in-fact for the purposes he was 

appointed Mr. Pravlik’s attorney-in-fact in the deed effecting the transfer of 

the Property from the City to Mr. Pravlik. 

3. The deed effecting the transfer of the Property to Mr. Knisley shall include a 

provision noting the City’s approval of the transfer effected by its terms.  

4. The said deed shall be subject to the City Solicitor’s review and approval and 

it shall contain an acknowledgment from the City Solicitor to confirm that he 

reviewed the deed and approved of its content for the benefit of the City.  The 

deed shall also include the City Solicitor’s acknowledgment that Mr. Pravlik 

satisfied his obligation to pay the City’s legal fees.  

5. This Order shall be attached to the deed. 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED THAT, the deed effecting the transfer from Mr. Pravlik t 

Mr. Knisely will be null and void in the event the parties do not comply with the terms and 

conditions set forth above.   

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 
  



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,154 - authorizing the forgiveness of loans within the Deferred Loan Program due to 

deficiencies with the program documents



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,154                  DATE:    December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland 

THAT, due to deficiencies  in the Deferred Loan Program documents, which have 

arisen on account of the passage of time, said loans will be forgiven. 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 
  



Name Date Balance Property ID Address
Def Loan H Deneen 11/1/1988 3,647.00       04 033450 905 Maryland Ave
Def Loan D Pirlozzi 11/27/1990 8,389.00       05 030269 713 Shriver Ave
Def Loan M Rhodes 4/2/1992 6,018.34       04 029194 11‐13 Putman St
Def Loan R Bohn (#2) 11/28/1994 7,841.00       22 012037 447 Baltimore Ave
Def Loan W Frazier 6/9/1995 11,747.25     23 006642 435 Goethe St
Def Loan R Mearkle 6/13/1995 14,951.00     05 018552 211 Knox St
Def Loan J Baldwin 6/30/1995 11,871.58     04 049675 329 Williams St
Def Loan Davis‐Miller 10/25/1994 17,680.00     22 008722 421 Broadway St
Def Loan W Livengood 1/16/1997 30,330.13     05 003172 539 Columbia Ave
Def Loan A Melotte 2/25/1997 13,461.00     05 008824 218 Pear St
Def Loan D Rice 4/16/1997 17,386.40     06 027954 208 Wallace St
Def Loan N Cromwell 12/19/1997 6,615.00       04 033221 740 Maryland Ave
Def Loan N Hymes 6/10/1998 3,237.82       22 008307 319 Emily Street
Properties that transferred 153,175.52  

Def Loan J Atkinson 6/8/1989 4,814.00       04 028996 508 Pennsylvania Ave
Def Loan F Soulsby 7/19/1989 6,824.00       04 041283 1017 Virginia Ave
Def Loan P MacDonald 3/17/1987 7,775.00       04 005554 216 Arch St
Def Loan M Gallagher 10/13/1992 25,007.00     22 006495 510 City View Terr
Def Loan P Stallings 3/1/1993 19,980.00     06 042082 815 Mount Royal Ave
Def Loan J Johnson 4/24/1995 5,181.93       05 009014 605 N Centre St
Def Loan P Conners 11/27/1995 10,136.53     04 038436 107 South St
Def Loan R Fisher 3/30/1995 5,692.50       05 005647 509 Dilley St
Def Loan R.Early 9/20/1996 14,595.00     06 017053 113 Spruce Place
Original Owners 100,005.96  

Total Deferred Loans 253,181.48  

City of Cumberland
Outstanding Deferred Loans



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,155 – amending the ARPA funding allocation approved by Order 26,961, approving an 

increase of $100,000 to Affordable Housing Assistance and a decrease of $100,000 to Community 

Development Property Improvement



- Order - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO.  27,155                  DATE:    December 20, 2022 
 

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland, 

 

THAT, the amendment of Order No. 26,961, dated February 15, 2022, 

approving an increase of ARPA funding allocation of $100,000 to Affordable Housing 

Assistance and a decrease of ARPA funding allocation of $100,000 to Community 

Development Property Improvement be and is hereby approved; and 

BE IT FURTHER ORDERED, that this amendment be and is hereby effective 

with the date of the passage of this order. 

Purpose Category
Amended 

Allocation

Affordable Housing Assistance Investments in Housing and Neighborhoods  $350,000 

Community Development Property Improvement Investments in Housing and Neighborhoods  $264,960  

 

 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 

 

 

 

 
  



Council Agenda Summary 
 

Meeting Date: December 20, 2022 

Key Staff Contact: Ken Tressler 

Item Title:  

American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) –Approval of ARPA funding adjustment for two community programs. 

  

Summary of project/issue/purchase/contract, etc. for Council: 

Due to the level of activity in the Affordable Housing Assistance property rehabilitation program, this 
amendment increases funding to that program by $100,000 to allow additional property rehabilitation 
grants.  Due to a reduced level of activity in the Community Development Property Improvement 
program, this amendment decreases the funding to that program by $100,000 to better align its funding 
with the level of activity.   

An order approving an increase of ARPA funding of $100,000 to Affordable Housing Assistance and a 
decrease of ARPA funding of $100,000 to Community Development Property Improvement. 

 Increase Affordable Housing Assistance from $250,000 to $350,000. 

 Decrease Community Development Property Improvement from $364,960 to $264,960. 

The table below illustrates the total ARPA funding after amendment.  

Program Request Category
Duration 

in Years

 Total ARPA 

Funding 

Affordable Housing Assistance Investments in Housing and Neighborhoods 3 350,000$      

Community Development Property Improvement Investments in Housing and Neighborhoods 3 264,960$       

Affordable Housing Assistance 

A program to provide a matching grant up to $25K for the rehab of the property. Bidder will be 
responsible for obtaining all required permits from the City and complete the work within the required 
time outlined by the City. This program is expected to increase the availability of affordable housing in 
the City while reducing or preventing blighted properties. 

Community Development Property Improvement 

Housing conditions in Cumberland need improvement and the pandemic accelerated this issue. 
Community Development staff created a work flow and timeline to address housing unit deficiencies 
during the next 3 years. The City will establish an efficient system to interview low-moderate income 
households who own their own homes, gather necessary documentation, conduct work-scope 
assessments, conduct environmental reviews, choose contractors, inspecting contractor work, and 
complete documentation for Federal funds using existing staff specialists and one new part-time 
member. The cost per year would be $264,960 with $238K for grants and $24,960 for staff time. Once 
the program is developed with policy/procedure and proven efficiency, funds from Community 
Development Block Grant program will continue the grants according to the number possible each year 



and funding availability. There has not been one minor housing rehab application to CDBG in about 10 
years from an agency with the capacity or desire to provide this much needed service. Funds would be 
targeted to housing code violations (referrals by staff) but would not be limited to those cases. These 3 
years will give the department time to adjust goal numbers by hours of staff time vs benefit. This will 
greatly improve the odds of being able to efficiently spend all CDBG funds each year and follow HUD 
spending requirements in a timely manner. 

 

Amount of Award: $0.00 

Budget number: N/A 

Grant, bond, etc. reference: ARPA 



Order - 
ofthe

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland
MARYLAND

ORDER NO. 26,961 DATE: February 15, 2022

ORDERED, By the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland, Maryland

THAT, the expenditure of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funding be and is

hereby approved for use as follows: 

Purpose Category Allocation

Janes Place for Abused Children Drug Abuse, Domestic Violence 102,623

and Mental Health

Union Rescue Mission Assistance Investments in Housing and 750,000

Neighborhoods

Community Development Property Investments in Housing and 364,960

Improvement Neighborhoods

Affordable Housing Assistance Investments in Housing and 250,000

Neighborhoods

YMCA Bus Replacement Transportation 216,000

Revenue Loss Revenue Loss 10, 000,000

Water fund Water Infrastructure 5,073,452

South End Water Main Replacement

Industrial Boulevard Water Main

Replacement

Replacement of4" Water Lines with 6" ( City- 
wide program) 

Ra and M. Mo ss ayor



File Attachments for Item:

. Order 27,156 - declaring certain City-owned properties to be surplus and authorizing them for public 

sale



- ORDER - 
of the 

Mayor and City Council of Cumberland 
MARYLAND 

 
 

ORDER NO. 27,156              DATE:  December 20, 2022 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council of Cumberland is the record owner of 

certain parcels of property identified herein; and 

WHEREAS,  the Mayor and City Council have determined that these properties 

are no longer needed for any public use and will be offered for sale to the general public; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

CUMBERLAND, THAT: 
 

1. The following properties are hereby declared to be surplus in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 1 of the Charter of the City of Cumberland: 

Tax ID# Address 

Tax ID# 23-002353 220 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002310 218 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002272 216 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002221 214 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002183  212 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002140 210 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002108 208 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002051 206 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-002019 204 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001977 202 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001934 200 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001756 201 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001799 203 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001837 205 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001888 207 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001594 209 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001632 211 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001675 213 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001713 215 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001802 217 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001845 219 Bellevue St. 

Tax ID# 23-001896 221 Bellevue St. 

 



2. After the passage of twenty (20) days from the date of this Order, the Mayor and 

City Council may pass an Ordinance authorizing the execution of a deed effecting the 

conveyance of any or all of the properties to a purchaser, and the City may proceed with 

the transfer of any or all of the properties in accordance with the terms of said Ordinance 

 

 

 

      ____________________________________ 

      Raymond M. Morriss, Mayor 



File Attachments for Item:

1. Letter from the City Clerk advising that the MD State Board of Canvassers certified the 2022 General 

Election results on December 12 2020, and that the Mayor, Raymond M. Morriss, was re-elected and 

Rock Cioni and James Leo Furstenberg, III., having received the two highest number of votes for the 

office of Council, are hereby declared nominated and will be sworn into office on January 3, 2023













 

December 20, 2022 
 
Mayor and City Council 
City Hall 
Cumberland, MD 21502 
 
Dear Mayor and Council Members, 
 
In compliance with Section 10(h)(4) of the City Charter, attached are the results of the 
Cumberland Municipal General Election held November 8, 2022, as certified by the State 
Board of Canvassers on December 12, 2022.   
 
According to the results, Raymond M. Morriss, having received the highest number of 
votes for the office of Mayor, and Richard J. Cioni and James L. Furstenberg, having 
received the two highest number of votes for the office of Council, are hereby declared 
nominated and will be sworn into office on January 3, 2022. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Allison Layton 
City Clerk 

 


	Top
	1.	Summary Statement of the closed meeting
	1.	Employee Retirements
	2.	Recognition of Fort Hill Football Team for State Championship
	.	Report - Admin. Services Monthly Reports - Oct. & Nov. 2022
	Admin Svcs Monthly Rep  October 2022
	Admin Svcs Monthly Rep  November 2022

	.	Report - Maintenance Division Monthly Reports - October & November 2022
	Maint. Div. - Oct & Nov _001

	.	November 2022 Monthly Police Report
	November 2022

	.	Utilities Division WATER/SEWER/FLOOD Monthly Report November 2022
	SKM_C25822120911170

	1.	Minutes - Closed, Work, Reg. - 9/6/22; Closed - 9/13/22
	09-06-22 Closed Session BACKPAGEONLY
	Work Session Mins-AgendaRev_M&CCUpdates_H-M 09-06-22
	M&CC Regular Public Meeting Minutes 09-06-22
	09-13-22 Closed Session - BACK SUMMARY PAGE ONLY

	1.	Ordinance 3936
	Ordinance - Public Ethics 2022.v1 3936

	2.	Ordinance 3937
	Ordinance 3937 - Seton-Pinecrest Rezoning (1)
	Exhibits (1)

	.	Order 27,144 - Debt Policy Update
	2022-12-20 Order 27144 Debt Policy Update
	Agenda Summary - Debt Policy Update (1)
	City Municipal Debt Policy_FY22 Redline (1)

	.	Order 27,145 - Chief Ternent Retirement Letter
	2022-12-20 Order 27145 Retirement of John Chuck Ternent Chief of Police
	Ternent Retirement Letter

	.	Order 27,146 - appointing Captain James Burt as acting Police Chief
	2022-12-20 Order 27146 Appointment of James Burt Acting Police Chief

	.	Order 27,147 - authorizing $25,000 in initial start up funds for the Carver Center
	2022-12-20 Order 27147 Carver Center Start Up Costs

	.	Order 27,148 - Mechanic Street 18" Sewer Line Emergency Repair
	2022-12-20 Order 27148 Carl Belt Emergency Repairs Mechanic St Sewer
	Agenda  Worksheet
	Carl Belt - 40110

	.	Order 27,149 - Purchase of a New Ford F600 Dump Truck with Plow and Spreader from Keystone Ford, Chambersburg, PA
	2022-12-20 Order 27149 Sole Source Dump Truck with Plow Keystone Ford
	Council Agenda Summary_001 (14)
	Purchase Approval_001 (1)
	Recommendation Letter_001 (18)
	Quote_001 (5)

	.	Order 27,150 - Purchase of New Ford F550 Service Body Truck from Keystone Ford, Chambersburg, PA
	2022-12-20 Order 27150 Sole Source Ford F550 Service Body Truck Keystone Ford
	Council Agenda Summary_001 (17)
	Purchase Approval_001 (3)
	Recommendation Letter_001 (20)
	Quote_001 (8)

	.	Order 27,151 - Purchase of a New Ford F250 Regular Cab Pickup Truck with Plow from Keystone Ford, Chambersburg, PA
	2022-12-20 Order 27151 Sole Source Ford F250 Pickup with Plow Keystone
	Council Agenda Summary_001 (19)
	Purchase Approval_001 (4)
	Recommendation Letter_001 (21)
	Quote_001 (9)

	.	Order 27,152 - Purchase of a New Ford F350 Service Body Truck from Keystone Ford, Chambersburg, PA and J & J Equipment , Somerset, PA
	2022-12-20 Order 27152 Sole Source Ford F350 Service Body Truck Keystone J&J
	Council Agenda Summary_001 (20)
	Recommendation Letter_001 (22)
	Purchase Approval_001 (5)
	Quotes_001 (2)

	.	Order 27,153 - 309 S. Cedar - Pravlik to Knisely
	2022-12-20 Order 27153 309 S.Cedar-Pravlik to Knisely-Rev-Mike

	.	Order 27,154 - Deferred Loan Program Forgiveness
	2022-12-20 Order 27154 Deferred Loan Program
	Community Devel Deferred Loans - Dec 2022 (1)

	.	Order 27,155 - ARPA Funding Amendment
	2022-12-20 Order 27155 ARPA Funding Amendment
	Agenda Summary - ARPA Community Programs fudning amendment_December 20, 2022
	Order 26961 - Auhtorizing ARPA Community Programs, Revenue Loss defaudlt $10 million value, and Infrastructure

	.	Order 27,156 - Declaring Property Surplus
	2022-12-20 Order 27156 Surplus Properties Bellevue

	1.	General Election Report from City Clerk
	Official Election Results 11-8-22
	2022 General Election Returns for Council

	Bottom

